
 
 
 

 
Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent, CT9 1XZ 

Tel: +44 (0)1843 577000 Fax: +44 (0)1843 290906 DX 30555 (Margate) www.thanet.gov.uk 
Interim Chief Executive: Colin Carmichael 

 
Date: 21 November 2023 
Our Ref: Governance & Audit Committee/Agenda 
Ask For: Steve Matthews 
Direct Dial: (01843) 577207 
Email: steven.matthews@thanet.gov.uk 
 
 
 

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

29 NOVEMBER 2023 
 
A meeting of the Governance & Audit Committee will be held at 7.00 pm on Wednesday, 29 
November 2023 in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent. 
 
Membership: 
 
Councillor W Scobie (Chair); Councillors: Bright (Vice-Chair), Barlow, Braidwood, d'Abbro, 
Donaldson, Farooki, Garner, Manners, Munns, Nichols, Packman, Pope and Towning 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
Item 
No 

           Subject 

  
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 To receive any declarations of interest.  Members are advised to consider the advice 

contained within the Declaration of Interest advice attached to this Agenda.  If a Member 
declares an interest, they should complete the Declaration of Interest Form. 
  

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 10) 
 To approve the Minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee meeting held on 27 

September 2023, copy attached. 
  

4. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT, MINIMUM REVENUE 
PROVISION POLICY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY FOR 
2024/25   

 Report to follow. 
  

5. MID YEAR REVIEW 2023/24: TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY (Pages 11 - 32) 

 
6. CONTRACT STANDING ORDER WAIVERS (Pages 33 - 60) 
 
7. AUDITOR'S ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 61 - 124) 
 
8. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 (Pages 125 - 148) 
 
9. QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (Pages 149 - 168) 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdYy7shF1kh6tvdSh3acxVRm70cKPLFkRBFNyVx2TgejRcm4w/viewform?usp=sf_link


Item 
No 

Subject 

 

10. AUDIT COMMITTEE ASSURANCE STATEMENT (Pages 169 - 232) 
 
11. RISK MANAGEMENT   
 Report to follow. 

  
12. THANET LOTTERY UPDATE   
 Report to follow. 

  
13. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS (Pages 233 - 238) 
 
14. ICT SECURITY UPDATE   
 Report to follow. 

 
 

 
 
Please scan this barcode for an electronic copy of this agenda. 

Page 2



 

 
 
 
Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?  
 
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on your 
Register of Interest Form.  
 
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so far as you 
are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the DPI during the 
declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under discussion, or when the 
interest has become apparent 
 
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation by the 
Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the Monitoring 
Officer prior to the meeting) you must:-  

 
1. Not speak or vote on the matter; 
2. Withdraw from the meeting room during  the consideration of the matter; 
3. Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.  
 
 
Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take? 
 
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) which: 
 
1. Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or 

Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, permission or 
registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated person;  

2. And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would 
reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public 
interest.  

 
An associated person is defined as: 
● A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including your 

spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, or as if you are 
civil partners; or 

● Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a 
partner, or any company of which they are directors; or 

● Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities 
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;  

● Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 
appointed or nominated by the Authority; or 

● any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and which: 
- exercises functions of a public nature; or 
- is directed to charitable purposes; or 
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public opinion or 

policy (including any political party or trade union) 
 
 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

An Authority Function is defined as: -  
● Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not relate 

particularly to your tenancy or lease; or 
● Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council; 
● Any ceremonial honour given to members of the  Council 
● Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992  
 
If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must declare the 
existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the matter, or when the 
interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda item.  
 
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a 
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to 
the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:- 
 

1. Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make 
representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being discussed in 
which case you can speak only) 

2. Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after speaking. 
3. Not seek to improperly influence the decision.  
 
 
Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality 
 
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or 
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of the 
meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or 
hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration relates to that person or 
body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a significant interest, in which case it 
should be declared as outlined above.  
 
 
What if I am unsure? 
 
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or 
the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting. 
 
If you need to declare an interest then please complete the declaration of interest form. 
 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSdYy7shF1kh6tvdSh3acxVRm70cKPLFkRBFNyVx2TgejRcm4w/viewform?usp=sf_link


GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2023 at 7.00 pm in Council Chamber, 
Council Offices, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent. 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor William Scobie (Chair); Councillors Bright, Barlow, 
d'Abbro, Donaldson, Farooki, Garner, Munns, Nichols, Packman, 
Pope and Towning 
 

In Attendance:   
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Braidwood and Davis.  
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The Chair gave several updates on the previous minutes. Councillor Britcher proposed, 
Councillor Donaldson seconded and members agreed.  
 

4. QUARTER 1 REVIEW 2023/24: TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT STRATEGY  
 
Chris Blundell introduced the report making the following key points:   
   

         It was a requirement that the treasury management activity was reported on a  
quarterly basis; 

         Key items within the activity included the gross debt position at £20M, and the  
underlying need to borrow finance the capital programme was estimated for be  
£60M by the end of the financial year.   

   
Members commented and asked the following questions:   
   

         There was an underspend of £33.5M in the general fund and £4.1M in the  
housing revenue account, could more detail be provided regarding this?   

   
Chris Blundell responded with the following points:   
   

         The detail was set out and explained for within the budget monitoring report. 
The  underspend was due to incorrect profiling; 

         Initially there wasn’t enough detailed information when setting the budget for the  
schemes.   

   
Councillor Donaldson proposed, Councillor Davis seconded and members AGREED that: 
  
The Governance & Audit Committee notes, and makes comments on as  appropriate, 
this report. 
 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
Matt Sanham introduced the report making the following key points:   
  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

         The council monitored and manages the corporate risks through the corporate  
risk register; 

         Contents of the report highlighted the high priority corporate risks, and the  
arrangements in place to ensure these risks were monitored and managed  
appropriately; 

         The council had a proactive methodology on risk management and an  
interdepartmental cooperation on risk strategy; 

         Risks had been assessed with a combination of the likelihood of something  
happening and the impact which arises if it does happened;  

         Risk was considered unavoidable in organisations; 
         At the staff level, the high level corporate risk register was regularly considered  

by the corporate management team.   
   
Speaking under Council Procedure Rule 20.1 a Member asked questions and made  a 
comment as follows:   
   

         There was £1.2M in the budget for the risk of increased spend due to  
homelessness; 

         There was a large piece of work regarding Berths 4/5 and project management  
framework; 

         The environment act would be discussed after the 2024 General Election; 
         There was no guaranteed external funding for the net zero strategy, however, 

the council was budgeting for electric vehicles and charging stations. 
   
Members commented and asked the following questions:   
  

         If repairs are made to the council estates, would the council opt for a net zero  
strategy?   

         Questioning was raised regarding the risk scoring within the reports; 
         Was there a review on how operational risks were deal with around emergency  

response and business continuity? 
         Members were pleased with the resilience within the risk management report  

regarding cyber-attacks; 
         Discussion around more frequent in-house working for council employee’s was  

raised in relation to risk management, specifically cyber-attacks and mental  
health; 

         Was the council recognising national standards, or was this tailored to the  
district?   

  
Chris Blundell, Mike Humber and Bob Porter responded with the following comments: 
  

         The council was looking for sustainable long term solutions; 
         There was a journey to net zero strategy whilst considering the council’s housing 

stock; 
         Five tower blocks within the tower block refurbishment programme would see 

the  removal and replacement of external wall insulation, this would be carried 
out  sustainably; 

         The social housing decarbonisation fund would improve the EPC ratings of the  
tower block buildings, reducing the carbon emissions; 

         The council was looking at corporate estates, and reducing carbon emissions  
within these estates; 

         Some risks were considered more severe than others. It was difficult to make 
comparison against different risks as each risk hit different categories of risk. 
Although risks were picking up different scorings, it was noted that each risk has  
a different composition due to hitting high scores across different risk categories; 

         The council planned for emergencies of all sorts and size across the district; 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



3 
 

         The operational risks regarding emergency response and business continuity  
would be reviewed and brought back to the committee; 

         There was a detailed management plan which had been produced from the 
internal audit; 

         Valid points were raised regarding the return to in-house working of council 
employee’s. Members would have the ability to shape and influence the policy 
when this topic comes to the General Purposes committee; 

         The risk management was a governance source of guidance which the council  
followed. 

   
Councillor Donaldson proposed, Councillor Britcher seconded and members AGREED: 
  
To approve the review of corporate risks and discuss annexed risks. 
 

6. INDICATIVE EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2021/22 - 2022/23  
 
Matt Sanham and Nick Halliwell introduced the report making the following key points: 
  

         The report covered the external audit plan for 2021/22 and 2022/23, this was  
developed by the appointed auditor, Grant Thornton; 

         The expectation was that the indicative audit plan would finalised and there  
would not be any significant changes to this; 

         The audit was scheduled to take place in October 2023; 
         Expected materiality was £2.7M, this was based on previous financial  

statements. This would be reassessed once the final statements of the accounts  
had been received; 

         Significant risks would be identified. Significant risks included: pension liabilities,  
property valuations and management override of controls; 

         New areas of focus for the 2022/23 audit included ISA 315.   
   
Councillor Pope proposed, Councillor Britcher seconded and members agreed to note  
the report. 
 

7. AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE  
 
Matt Sanham and Nick Hallliwell introduced the report making the following key points: 
  

         The Audit progress and sector update was provided by Grant Thornton; 
         The report set out two key areas, audit progress and sector updates; 
         There was an audit backlog in local government audits. There were several key  

areas regarding why this had happened:   
1.    Regulator focus around key areas and significant risks which had large 

values  in accounts; 
2.    Local audit capacity. 

         There were talks regarding a backstop date, if audits were not completed by this  
set date a disclaimer opinion would be issued.   

   
Members commented and asked the following questions:   
   

         As well as having a delay across the sector due to the pandemic, the council  
also had governance issues; 

         Had there been any discussion on specific dates regarding the backstop date? 
   
Nick Halliwell responded: 
   

         There had been discussions, but there was no definitive answers on dates. 
There was talk around the date of 31st March.   

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



4 
 

   
Councillor Donaldson proposed, Councillor Garner seconded and members agreed to 
note the report. 
 

8. AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 2020/21  
 
Nick Halliwell introduced the report making the following key points:   
   

         The report was presented at the last meeting of governance and audit, however  
there had been several updates; 

         Advice had been given from the technical team that due to new code  
requirements around value for money reporting the findings should be given at  
the next committee meeting; 

         Four key recommendations had been identified in the value for money report, 
this would be presented in the following committee.   

   
Councillor Towning proposed, Councillor Donaldson seconded and members AGREED:   
   

1.    That the Audit Findings Report for 2020/21 as set out at Annex 1 is considered; 
2.    In the unlikely event that a minor change would be required, i.e. immaterial, the 

Section 151 be delegated the authority to sign-off the Audit Findings Report, in 
consultation with the committee Chair. 

 
9. QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  

 
Simon Webb introduced the report, making the following key points:   
   

         This was the regular quarterly internal update report which summarised the work  
by the East Kent Audit Partnership. The report contained details of the  
performance of the Easter Kent Audit Partnership up until the end of quarter one,  
30th June 2023; 

         Nine audits were completed during quarter one; 
         Three areas had achieved substantial assurance. This was noted as garden 

waste and recycling income, the HRA business plan and insurance and inventory 
of portable assets; 

         Area’s which concluded reasonable assurance included environmental protection 
service requests, rent accounting collection and debt management; 

         Employee health and safety concluded limited assurance; 
         Planned maintenance contract letting and management concluded no  

assurance; 
         Follow ups were considered an important part of the audit. During the period,  

three follow ups had been completed; 
         Complaints monitoring moved from no assurance up to reasonable assurance,  

this was a significant improvement; 
         There had been slippage in implementing the recommendations regarding 

absence  management, revised due dates for the actions were proposed.   
   
Speaking under Council Procedure Rule 20.1 a Member asked questions and made a  
comment as follows:   
  

         The audit findings were welcomed; 
         There had been fortnightly meetings with the Section 151 Officer and Health and  

Safety Manager. Cabinet was reviewing health and safety statistics; 
         If residents were not getting good value for money regarding East Kent  

Opportunities, actions would be taken to address this.   
   
Members commented and made the following points:   

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



5 
 

   
         There had been historic governance and management problems, officers would 

be bringing a report to October’s Cabinet meeting regarding this; 
         What was the process for writing off debts? 
         A question was raised around carefully chosen language in the report; 
         Areas of concern were related to contractors fitting low cost non-direct wired  

carbon monoxide alarms in every instance, and thirteen new boiler installations  
with thirteen instances of work paid for and no certification. These examples had 
flagged up issues with the way the contract was managed; 

         Were officers confident that the internal audit plan for 2023/24 and 2024/25 
would cover the  core aspects of the Council in terms of assurance? 

  
Chris Blundell, Bob Porter and Matt Sanham responded with the following points:     
  

         There were different arrangements made in the constitution for writing off debts.  
At a certain level debt would need to be presented to Cabinet, under a certain  
level the Section 151 Officer could write off the debt; 

         There would be a follow up audit; 
         The gas boiler installation and the installation of carbon monoxide alarms were  

considered legacy issues from East Kent Housing setting up this specific 
contract. The Council requested the necessary installation certificates, but they 
were delayed until the contractor confirmed that they had  put the correct anti-
corrosion additives into the water. This was a requirement of  the Council to 
ensure the life of the new central heating system would be preserved post 
installation; 

         Within the new gas boiler contract, every boiler would be checked by the external 
technical auditing contractor. New arrangements were noted as much more 
 robust than prior arrangements; 

         The Council took fraud and corruption very seriously; 
         The Head and Deputy Head of Audit met with the Section 151 Officer on a 

regular basis  to discuss the plan. The plan was a live document, and moved with 
the emerging  risks and opportunities of the Council; 

         Typically one follow up is untaken for audits, however there are exceptions to 
this, particularly if the Committee requests further assurance. 

  
Councillor Davis proposed, Councillor Britcher seconded and members agreed to note 
the report. 
 
 
 
Meeting concluded : 8.43 pm 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Mid Year Review 2023/24: Treasury Management and Annual
Investment Strategy

Governance & Audit Committee 29 November 2023

Report Author Chris Blundell, Director of Corporate Services
and Section 151 Officer

Portfolio Holder Councillor Rob Yates, Cabinet Member for
Corporate Services

Status For Decision

Classification Unrestricted

Ward Thanet Wide

Previously Considered by Cabinet - 16 November 2023

Executive Summary:

This report summarises treasury management activity and prudential/ treasury
indicators for the first half of 2023/24.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines treasury
management as:

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks.”

The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and
scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities. This report is, therefore,
important in that respect, as it provides details of the 2023/24 mid-year position for
treasury activities.

Key reporting items to consider include:

● 2023/24 mid-year capital expenditure on long term assets was £5.9m
(2022/23 mid-year: £6.3m), against a full-year budget of £60.7m.

● The Council’s gross debt, also called the borrowing position, at 30 September
2023 was £19.7m (30 September 2022: £20.0m).

● The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance its capital expenditure,
also called the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), is estimated to be
£78.3m at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £52.2m).

● The Council has held less gross debt than its CFR and accordingly has
complied with the requirement not to exceed its authorised borrowing limit of
£81m.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



● As at 30 September 2023 the Council’s investment balance was £55.4m (30
September 2022: £56.8m).

● It is proposed that the 2023/24 Treasury Management Strategy Statement be
amended as described in section 3 of this report.

Recommendation(s):

That the Governance & Audit Committee:

1. Notes, and makes comments on as appropriate, this report and annexes;
2. Recommends this report and annexes (including the prudential and treasury

indicators that are shown and the proposed changes to the 2023/24 Treasury
Management Strategy Statement) to Council for approval.

Corporate Implications

Financial and Value for Money

The financial implications are highlighted in this report.

Legal

Section 151 of the 1972 Local Government Act requires a suitably qualified named
officer to keep control of the Council’s finances. For this Council, this is the Director
of Corporate Services and Section 151 Officer, and this report is helping to carry out
that function.

Risk Management

Risk management is as per the provisions of the annual Treasury Management
Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual
Investment Strategy.

Corporate

Failure to undertake this process will impact on the Council’s compliance with the
Treasury Management Code of Practice.

Equalities Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from this report, but
the Council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on issues of diversity
amongst the local community and ensure service delivery matches these.

It is important to be aware of the Council’s responsibility under the Public Sector
Equality Duty (PSED) and show evidence that due consideration had been given to
the equalities impact that may be brought upon communities by the decisions made
by Council.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

Page 12

Agenda Item 5



This report relates to the following corporate priorities: -
● Growth
● Environment
● Communities.

1 Background

1.1 Treasury management

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) defines
treasury management as:

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and
cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market
transactions;

the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and

the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised
during the year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury
management operation is to ensure this cash flow is adequately planned,
with surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, providing
adequate liquidity initially before considering optimising investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding
of the Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the
borrowing need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning
to ensure the Council can meet its capital spending operations. This
management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or short term
loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any debt
previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.

1.2 Capital Strategy

The CIPFA Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local
authorities to prepare a Capital Strategy which is to provide the following: -

● a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services;

● an overview of how the associated risk is managed;
● the implications for future financial sustainability.

2 Introduction

2.1 This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management.

2.2 The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



a) Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy
Statement which sets out the policies and objectives of the Council’s
treasury management activities.

b) Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which
set out the manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those
policies and objectives.

c) Receipt by the full Council of an annual Treasury Management
Strategy Statement - including the Annual Investment Strategy and
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (for the year ahead), a Mid-year
Review Report (this report) and an Annual Report (stewardship
report), covering activities during the previous year. Two additional
quarterly reports are also provided to the Governance and Audit
Committee.

d) Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and
monitoring treasury management policies and practices and for the
execution and administration of treasury management decisions.

e) Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury
management strategy and policies to a specific named body. For this
Council the delegated body is the Governance and Audit Committee.

2.3 This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of
Practice on Treasury Management, and covers the following:

● An economic update for the first half of the 2023/24 financial year;
● A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual

Investment Strategy;
● The Council’s capital expenditure (see also the Capital Strategy) and

prudential indicators;
● A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2023/24;
● A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2023/24;
● A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2023/24;
● A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for

2023/24.

3 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy Update

3.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2023/24, which
includes the Annual Investment Strategy, Capital Strategy and Non-Treasury
Investment Report, was approved by the Council on 9 February 2023.

3.2 It is proposed that both the Operational Boundary and Authorised Limit for
borrowing in the 2023/24 TMSS (referred to in section 3.1 above) be
increased by £20m to reflect the increase in the 2023/24 HRA capital
programme for the acquisition and development of new affordable housing
units (as referred to in section 4.2 below).

Page 14

Agenda Item 5



3.3 During the half year ended 30 September 2023 the Council operated within
the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the 2023/24 TMSS.

4 The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators)

4.1 This part of the report is structured to update:
● The Council’s capital expenditure plans;
● How these plans are being financed;
● The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the

prudential indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and
● Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.

4.2 Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure

This table shows the revised budgets for capital expenditure and the changes
since the capital programme was agreed at the Budget.

The revised GF budget includes net reprofiling of -£6.748m (£33.159m
unspent budgets from 2022/23 that have been rolled into 2023/24 less
£39.907m subsequently transferred out). The largest element of the increase
in the revised HRA budget is £19.485m for the acquisition and development
of new affordable housing units

Capital Expenditure 2023/24
Original
Budget
£m

Current
Position –

Actual spend
at

30/09/23
£m

2023/24
Revised
Budget
£m

General Fund 32.999 2.567 26.640
HRA 12.453 3.286 34.095
Total 45.452 5.853 60.735

Monitoring information on the capital programme at scheme level, including
forecasts to the end of the financial year, is included in the regular Cabinet
Budget Monitoring Reports.

4.3 Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme

The table below takes the capital expenditure plans (as detailed in the
previous table), and shows the expected financing arrangements of this
capital expenditure.

The borrowing element of the table increases the underlying indebtedness of
the Council by way of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), although
this will be reduced in part by revenue charges for the repayment of debt (the
Minimum Revenue Provision). This direct borrowing need may also be
supplemented by maturing debt and other treasury requirements.

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



Capital
Expenditure

2023/24
Original
Budget
£m
Total

Current
Position –
Actual at
30/09/23

£m

2023/24
Revised
Budget
£m
GF

2023/24
Revised
Budget
£m
HRA

2023/24
Revised
Budget
£m
Total

Total spend 45.452 5.853 26.640 34.095 60.735
Financed by:
Capital
receipts

3.811 4.653 1.517 6.170

Capital
grants

25.836 14.336 1.583 15.919

Reserves 8.332 1.034 9.023 10.057
Revenue 0.405 0.112 0.370 0.482
Total
financing

38.384 20.135 12.493 32.628

Borrowing
need

7.068 6.505 21.602 28.107

4.4 Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing
Requirement, External Debt and the Operational Boundary

The Council’s underlying need to borrow to fund its capital expenditure is
termed the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The CFR can be thought
of as the outstanding debt that still needs to be repaid in relation to the capital
assets (buildings, vehicles etc) that the Council has purchased or invested in.
It can also be helpful to compare it to the outstanding balance that is still
payable on a loan or a mortgage, in this case we are considering how much
of the Council’s debt still needs to be paid for.

The table below shows the CFR, and also shows the expected debt position
over the period, which is termed the Operational Boundary.

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement

We are on target to achieve the forecast CFR. The main reason for the
increase in estimate shown below is the increase in the 2023/24 HRA capital
programme for the acquisition and development of new affordable housing
units (as referred to in section 4.2 above). THE CFR estimates below do not
reflect the transfer of land off Highfield Road, Ramsgate from GF to HRA (as
per the report tabled at the 2 March 2023 Cabinet meeting) as this transfer is
estimated for 2024/25.

Prudential Indicator – the Operational Boundary for external debt

2023/24
Original
Estimate

£m

Current Position
– Actual at
30/09/23

£m

2023/24
Revised
Estimate

£m
Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement
CFR –General Fund 29.002 28.687

Page 16

Agenda Item 5



CFR – HRA 31.331 49.631
Total CFR 60.333 78.318
Net movement in CFR 8.099 26.084

2023/24
Original
Indicator

£m

Current Position
– Actual at
30/09/23

£m

2023/24
Revised
Indicator

£m
Prudential Indicator - the Operational Boundary for External Debt
Borrowing 76.000 19.718 96.000
Other long term
liabilities*

10.000 0.596 10.000

Total debt 86.000 20.314 106.000

* Any ‘on balance sheet’ PFI schemes and finance leases etc (including the
leisure centre deferred credit).

4.5 Limits to Borrowing Activity

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to
ensure that over the medium term, borrowing will only be for a capital
purpose. Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term,
exceed the total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any
additional CFR for 2023/24 and next two financial years. This allows some
flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years. The Council has
approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to
if this proves prudent.

2023/24
Original
Estimate

£m

Current
Position –
Actual at

30/09/23 £m

2023/24
Revised
Estimate

£m
Gross borrowing 54.683 19.718 77.317

Plus other long term
liabilities*

0.597 0.596 0.568

Total gross
borrowing

55.280 20.314 77.885

CFR (year end
position)

60.333 78.318

The Section 151 Officer reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the
current or future years in complying with this prudential indicator.

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing. This is
the Authorised Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is
prohibited, and needs to be set and revised by Members. It reflects the level
of borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but
is not sustainable in the longer term. It is the expected maximum borrowing
need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the statutory
limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



Authorised Limit for
external debt

2023/24
Original
Indicator

£m

Current Position
– Actual at
30/09/23

£m

2023/24
Revised
Indicator

£m
Borrowing 81.000 19.718 101.000

Other long term liabilities* 15.000 0.596 15.000
Total 96.000 20.314 116.000

* Any ‘on balance sheet’ PFI schemes and finance leases etc (including the
leisure centre deferred credit).

5 Annual Investment Strategy 2023/24

5.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2023/24, which
includes the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by Council on 9
February 2023. In accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code
of Practice, it sets out the Council’s investment priorities as being:

● Security of capital
● Liquidity
● Yield

5.2 The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity and with the
Council’s risk appetite. In the current economic climate it is considered
appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash flow needs, but also
to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months with high credit quality
financial institutions.

5.3 Creditworthiness

Following the Government’s fiscal event on 23rd September 2022, both S&P
and Fitch placed the UK sovereign debt rating on Negative Outlook, reflecting
a downside bias to the current ratings in light of expectations of weaker
finances and a challenging economic outlook. Nothing further has evolved in
the first half of 2023/24.

5.4 Credit Default Swap (CDS) prices

It is noted that sentiment in the current economic climate can easily shift, so it
remains important to undertake continual monitoring of all aspects of risk and
return in the current circumstances.

5.5 Investment rates during half year ended 30th September 2023

Page 18

Agenda Item 5



5.6 The Council held £55.441m of investments as at 30 September 2023, with
maturities all under one year (£56.827m at 31 March 2023). The investment
portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 4.68% against a
benchmark (average 7 day SONIA compounded rate) of 4.67%. The
constituent investments are:

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



Sector Country Total
£m

Banks UK 6.285
Money Market Funds UK 48.156

Bond Funds UK 1.000
Total 55.441

5.7 The Section 151 Officer confirms that the approved limits within the Annual
Investment Strategy were not breached during the first six months of
2023/24.

5.8 The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2023/24 is £1.262m (£0.631m
half-year) and performance for the first half of the financial year is above
budget at £1.389m. The revised estimate for 2023/24 is £2.385m.

5.9 The above bond fund is a pooled investment fund accounted for at fair value,
although there is a mandatory statutory override for local authorities to
reverse all unrealised fair value movements resulting from pooled investment
funds to 31st March 2025. There was an unrealised fair value gain of £24k as
at 31 March 2023 and it is not expected that the cessation of the override will
have an adverse impact on the Council.

5.10 Investment Risk Benchmarking

Investment risk benchmarks were set in the 2023/24 Treasury Management
Strategy Statement (TMSS) for security, liquidity and yield. The mid-year
position against these benchmarks is given below.

5.10.1 Security

The Council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the current portfolio,
when compared to historic default tables, is:

● 0.05% historic risk of default when compared to the whole portfolio
(excluding unrated investments).

The security benchmark for each individual year is (excluding unrated
investments):

1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years

Maximum 0.05% 0.05% 0.05% 0.05% 0.05%

Note: This benchmark is an average risk of default measure, and would not
constitute an expectation of loss against a particular investment.

The Section 151 Officer can report that the investment portfolio was
maintained within this overall benchmark for the first half of this financial year.

5.10.2 Liquidity

Page 20

Agenda Item 5



In respect of this area the Council seeks to maintain:

● Liquid short term deposits of at least £10m available with a week’s notice.

● Weighted Average Life benchmark is expected to be 0.5 years, with a
maximum of 1.0 year.

The Section 151 Officer can report that liquidity arrangements were adequate
for the first half of this financial year.

This authority does not currently place investments for more than 370 days
due to the credit, security and counterparty risks of placing such investments.

5.10.3 Yield

Local measures of yield benchmarks are:

● Investments – Internal returns above the average 7 day SONIA
compounded rate.

The Section 151 Officer can report that the yield on deposits for the first half
of the financial year is 4.68% against a benchmark (average 7 day SONIA
compounded rate) of 4.67%.

5.11 Investment Counterparty criteria

The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS
is meeting the requirement of the treasury management function.

6 Borrowing

6.1 The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR) revised estimate for
2023/24 is £78.318m. The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to
borrow for capital purposes. If the CFR is positive the Council may borrow
from the PWLB or the market (external borrowing) or from internal balances
on a temporary basis (internal borrowing). The balance of external and
internal borrowing is generally driven by market conditions. The Council has
borrowings of £19.718m (table 4.5) and will have utilised an estimated
£58.600m of cash flow funds in lieu of borrowing (assuming no additional
borrowing is undertaken during the year). This is a prudent and cost effective
approach in the current economic climate but will require ongoing monitoring
if further upside risk to gilt yields prevails.

6.2 No new external borrowing was undertaken during the first half of this
financial year.

6.3 The Council repaid £0.165m of maturing debt during the first half of this
financial year using investment balances, as below:

Lender Principal
£’000 Interest Rate Repayment

Date
PWLB 43 3.08% 24/04/23

PWLB 50 2.48% 30/05/23

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



PWLB 72 1.28% 20/06/23

Total 165

As below, a further £0.093m of existing maturing debt is due to be repaid
during the second half of this financial year. In addition, the Council has a
long term loan of £4.5m from Dexia which has a lender’s option/borrower’s
option (LOBO) feature. The option allows Dexia to alter the interest rate every
six months although, if Dexia exercises this option, the Council may repay the
loan. If Dexia decides not to exercise this option, the loan will continue at the
fixed rate until maturity in 2065.

Lender Principal
£’000 Interest Rate Repayment

Date
PWLB 43 3.08% 23/10/23

PWLB 50 2.48% 27/11/23

Total 93

6.4 Borrowing may be undertaken during the second half of this financial year
and options will be reviewed in due course in line with market conditions. The
capital programme is being kept under regular review due to the effects of
inflationary pressures and shortages of materials, labour, and capital receipts.
The Council’s borrowing strategy will therefore also be regularly reviewed
and then revised, if necessary, in order to achieve optimum value and risk
exposure in the long-term.

6.5 The graph and table below show the movement in PWLB borrowing rates for
the first six months of the year to 30 September 2023.

6.6 PWLB borrowing rates during half year ended 30th September 2023

Page 22

Agenda Item 5



6.7 Gilt yields and PWLB certainty rates were on a generally rising trend
throughout the first half of 2023/24. At the beginning of April, the 5-year rate
was the cheapest part of the curve and touched 4.14% whilst the 25-year rate
was relatively expensive at 4.58%.

6.8 July saw short-dated rates peak at their most expensive. The 1-year rate
spiked to 6.36% and the 5-year rate to 5.93%. Although, in due course,
short-dated rate expectations fell, the medium dates shifted higher through
August and the 10-year rate pushed higher to 5.51% and the 25-year rate to
5.73%. The 50-year rate was 4.27% on 5th April but rose to 5.45% on 28th

September.

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



6.9 Link Group (the Council’s external treasury management advisor) forecasts
rates to fall back over the next two to three years as inflation dampens. The
CPI measure of inflation is expected to fall below 2% in the second half of
2024, and Link Group forecasts 50-year rates to stand at 3.90% by the end of
September 2025. However, there is considerable gilt issuance to be digested
by the market over the next couple of years, as a minimum, so there is a high
degree of uncertainty as to whether rates will fall that far.

6.10 The current PWLB rates are set as margins over gilt yields as follows: -
● PWLB Standard Rate is gilt plus 100 basis points (G+100bps)
● PWLB Certainty Rate (GF) is gilt plus 80 basis points (G+80bps)
● PWLB Local Infrastructure Rate is gilt plus 60bps (G+60bps)
● PWLB Certainty Rate (HRA) is gilt plus 40bps (G+40bps)

The UK Infrastructure Bank will lend to local authorities that meet its
scheme criteria at a rate currently set at gilt plus 40bps (G+40bps).

6.11 Debt rescheduling opportunities have increased over the course of the past
six months and will be considered if giving rise to long-term savings.
However, no debt rescheduling has been undertaken to date in the current
financial year.

6.12 The Council’s budgeted debt interest payable for 2023/24 is £2.077m
(£1.039m half-year) and performance for the first half of the financial year is
below budget at £0.401m, reflecting the use of internal borrowing (see
section 6.1). The revised estimate for 2023/24 is £2.388m.

7 Treasury Management Indicators

7.1 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other
long term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue
stream.

% 2023/24
Original Indicator

2023/24
Revised Indicator

GF 10.0% 5.6%
HRA 6.6% 3.5%

7.2 Maturity Structures of Borrowing

These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate
sums falling due for refinancing.

2023/24
Original
Upper
Limit

Current
Position –
Actual at
30/09/23

2023/24
Revised
Upper
Limit

Page 24

Agenda Item 5



Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing
Under 12 months 50% 35.7% 50%
1 year to under 2 years 50% 0.4% 50%
2 years to under 5 years 50% 1.3% 50%
5 years to under 10 years 50% 12.0% 50%
10 years to under 20 years 50% 35.8% 50%
20 years to under 30 years 50% 9.7% 50%
30 years to under 40 years 50% 0.0% 50%
40 years to under 50 years 50% 5.1% 50%
50 years and above 50% 0.0% 50%

The current position shows the actual percentage of fixed rate debt the
authority has within each maturity span. None of the upper limits have been
breached.

8 Options

8.1 The recommended option (to ensure regulatory compliance as set out in
section 1 of this report) is that the Governance & Audit Committee:

● Notes, and makes comments on as appropriate, this report and
annexes.

● Recommends this report and annexes (including the prudential and
treasury indicators that are shown and the proposed changes to the
2023/24 Treasury Management Strategy Statement) to Council for
approval.

8.2 Alternatively, the Governance & Audit Committee may decide not to do this
and advise the reason(s) why.

9 Next Steps

9.1 This report is to go to the 7 December 2023 Council meeting for approval.

10 Disclaimer

10.1 This report (including annexes) is a technical document focussing on public
sector investments and borrowings and, as such, readers should not use the
information contained within the report to inform personal investment or
borrowing decisions. Neither Thanet District Council nor any of its officers or
employees makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to
the accuracy or completeness of the information contained herein (such
information being subject to change without notice) and shall not be in any
way responsible or liable for the contents hereof and no reliance should be
placed on the accuracy, fairness or completeness of the information
contained in this document. Any opinions, forecasts or estimates herein
constitute a judgement and there can be no assurance that they will be
consistent with future results or events. No person accepts any liability

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from any use of this document or
its contents or otherwise in connection therewith.

Contact Officer: Chris Blundell, Director of Corporate Services & Section 151 Officer
Reporting to: Colin Carmichael, Interim Chief Executive

Annex List

Annex 1: Economic Update, Interest Rate Forecast and Debt Maturity
Annex 2: Guidance on the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual

Investment Strategy – Mid Year Review Report 2023/24

Corporate Consultation Undertaken

Finance: N/A
Legal: Sameera Khan, Interim Head of Legal & Monitoring Officer

Page 26

Agenda Item 5



ANNEX 1 – ECONOMIC UPDATE, INTEREST RATE FORECAST AND DEBT
MATURITY

1 Link Group’s Economic Update (issued by Link on 4 October 2023)

1.1 The first half of 2023/24 saw:

- Interest rates rise by a further 100 basis points, taking Bank Rate from 4.25% to
5.25% and, possibly, the peak in the tightening cycle.

- Short, medium and long-dated gilts remain elevated as inflation continually surprised
to the upside.

- A 0.5% m/m decline in real GDP in July, mainly due to more strikes.

- Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation falling from 8.7% in April to 6.7% in August, its
lowest rate since February 2022, but still the highest in the G7.

- Core CPI inflation declining to 6.2% in August from 7.1% in April and May, a then 31
years high.

- A cooling in labour market conditions, but no evidence yet that it has led to an easing
in wage growth (as the 3myy growth of average earnings rose to 7.8% in August,
excluding bonuses).

1.2 The 0.5% m/m fall in GDP in July suggests that underlying growth has lost
momentum since earlier in the year. Some of the weakness in July was due to there
being almost twice as many working days lost to strikes in July (281,000) than in June
(160,000). But with output falling in 10 out of the 17 sectors, there is an air of
underlying weakness.

1.3 The fall in the composite Purchasing Managers Index from 48.6 in August to 46.8 in
September left it at its lowest level since COVID-19 lockdowns reduced activity in
January 2021. At face value, it is consistent with the 0.2% q/q rise in real GDP in the
period April to June, being followed by a contraction of up to 1% in the second half of
2023.

1.4 The 0.4% m/m rebound in retail sales volumes in August is not as good as it looks as
it partly reflected a pickup in sales after the unusually wet weather in July. Sales
volumes in August were 0.2% below their level in May, suggesting much of the
resilience in retail activity in the first half of the year has faded.

1.5 As the growing drag from higher interest rates intensifies over the next six months,
Link thinks the economy will continue to lose momentum and soon fall into a mild
recession. Strong labour demand, fast wage growth and government handouts have
all supported household incomes over the past year. And with CPI inflation past its
peak and expected to decline further, the economy has got through the cost-of- living
crisis without recession. But even though the worst of the falls in real household
disposable incomes are behind us, the phasing out of financial support packages
provided by the government during the energy crisis means real incomes are unlikely
to grow strongly. Higher interest rates will soon bite harder too. Link expects the Bank
of England to keep interest rates at the probable peak of 5.25% until the second half
of 2024. Mortgage rates are likely to stay above 5.0% for around a year.

Page 27

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1



1.6 The tightness of the labour market continued to ease, with employment in the three
months to July falling by 207,000. The further decline in the number of job vacancies
from 1.017m in July to 0.989m in August suggests that the labour market has
loosened a bit further since July. That is the first time it has fallen below 1m since July
2021. At 3.0% in July, and likely to have fallen to 2.9% in August, the job vacancy rate
is getting closer to 2.5%, which would be consistent with slower wage growth.
Meanwhile, the 48,000 decline in the supply of workers in the three months to July
offset some of the loosening in the tightness of the labour market. That was due to a
63,000 increase in inactivity in the three months to July as more people left the labour
market due to long term sickness or to enter education. The supply of labour is still
0.3% below its pre-pandemic February 2020 level.

1.7 But the cooling in labour market conditions still has not fed through to an easing in
wage growth. While the monthly rate of earnings growth eased sharply from an
upwardly revised +2.2% in June to -0.9% in July, a lot of that was due to the one-off
bonus payments for NHS staff in June not being repeated in July. The headline 3myy
rate rose from 8.4% (revised up from 8.2%) to 8.5%, which meant UK wage growth
remains much faster than in the US and in the Euro-zone. Moreover, while the Bank
of England’s closely watched measure of regular private sector wage growth eased a
touch in July, from 8.2% 3myy in June to 8.1% 3myy, it is still well above the Bank of
England’s prediction for it to fall to 6.9% in September.

1.8 CPI inflation declined from 6.8% in July to 6.7% in August, the lowest rate since
February 2022. The biggest positive surprise was the drop in core CPI inflation, which
declined from 6.9% to 6.2%. That reverses all the rise since March and means the
gap between the UK and elsewhere has shrunk (US core inflation is 4.4% and in the
Euro-zone it is 5.3%). Core goods inflation fell from 5.9% to 5.2% and the further
easing in core goods producer price inflation, from 2.2% in July to a 29-month low of
1.5% in August, suggests it will eventually fall close to zero. But the really positive
development was the fall in services inflation from 7.4% to 6.8%. That also reverses
most of the rise since March and takes it below the forecast of 7.2% the Bank of
England published in early August.

1.9 In its latest monetary policy meeting on 20 September, the Bank of England left
interest rates unchanged at 5.25%. The weak August CPI inflation release, the recent
loosening in the labour market and the downbeat activity surveys appear to have
convinced the Bank of England that it has already raised rates far enough. The
minutes show the decision was “finely balanced”. Five Monetary Policy Committee
members (Bailey, Broadbent, Dhingra, Pill and Ramsden) voted for no change and
the other four (Cunliffe, Greene, Haskel and Mann) voted for a 25 basis point hike.

1.10 Like the US Fed, the Bank of England wants the markets to believe in the higher for
longer narrative. The statement did not say that rates have peaked and once again
said if there was evidence of more persistent inflation pressures “further tightening in
policy would be required”. Governor Bailey stated, “we’ll be watching closely to see if
further increases are needed”. The Bank also retained the hawkish guidance that
rates will stay “sufficiently restrictive for sufficiently long”.

1.11 This narrative makes sense as the Bank of England does not want the markets to
decide that a peak in rates will be soon followed by rate cuts, which would loosen
financial conditions and undermine its attempts to quash inflation. The language also
gives the Bank of England the flexibility to respond to new developments. A rebound
in services inflation, another surge in wage growth and/or a further leap in oil prices

Page 28

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1



could conceivably force it to raise rates at the next meeting on 2nd November, or
even pause in November and raise rates in December.

1.12 The yield on 10-year Gilts fell from a peak of 4.74% on 17th August to 4.44% on 29th
September, mainly on the back of investors revising down their interest rate
expectations. But even after their recent pullback, the rise in Gilt yields has exceeded
the rise in most other Developed Market government yields since the start of the year.
Looking forward, once inflation falls back, Gilt yields are set to reduce further. A (mild)
recession over the next couple of quarters will support this outlook if it helps to loosen
the labour market (higher unemployment/lower wage increases).

1.13 The pound weakened from its cycle high of $1.30 in the middle of July to $1.21 in late
September. In the first half of the year, the pound bounced back strongly from the
Truss debacle last autumn. That rebound was in large part driven by the substantial
shift up in UK interest rate expectations. However, over the past couple of months,
interest rate expectations have dropped sharply as inflation started to come down,
growth faltered, and the Bank of England called an end to its hiking cycle.

1.14 The FTSE 100 has gained more than 2% since the end of August, from around 7,440
on 31st August to 7,608 on 29th September. The rebound has been primarily driven
by higher energy prices which boosted the valuations of energy companies. The
FTSE 100’s relatively high concentration of energy companies helps to explain why
UK equities outperformed both US and Euro-zone equities in September.
Nonetheless, as recently as 21st April the FTSE 100 stood at 7,914.

2 Link Group’s Interest Rate Forecast (issued by Link on 4 October 2023)

2.1 The Council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisors and part of their
service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.

2.2 Link’s latest forecast on 25th September 2023 sets out a view that short, medium and
long-dated interest rates will be elevated for some little while, as the Bank of England
seeks to squeeze inflation out of the economy.

2.3 Link’s PWLB rate forecasts below are based on the Certainty Rate (the standard rate
minus 20 basis points, calculated as gilts plus 80 basis points) which has been
accessible to most authorities since 1st November 2012.

Page 29

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1



3 Debt Maturity

3.1 The maturity structure of the Council’s borrowing as at 30 September 2023 (as per
section 7 of the main report) is shown below in graph format.

3.2 As per section 6.3 of the main report, £0.165m of council debt with the PWLB
matured, and was repaid, during the first half of this financial year.

Page 30

Agenda Item 5
Annex 1



ANNEX 2 – GUIDANCE ON THE TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT
AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY – MID YEAR REVIEW REPORT 2023/24

Prudential Code

The Prudential Code was developed by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) as a professional code of practice for capital finance, to which local
authorities must have regard.

Capital Expenditure

The Capital Expenditure table (section 4.3 of report) is split between the Council’s Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) and General Fund (GF or non-HRA). The HRA is a ‘ring-fenced’
account for local authority housing.

The table also shows the resources used to fund the capital expenditure (being capital
receipts from the sale of assets, capital grants, reserves and revenue) and any shortfall in
resources. This shortfall represents the Council’s borrowing need.

Borrowing Limits

The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s aggregate borrowing
need. i.e. the element of the capital programme that cannot be funded. Borrowing may only
be undertaken for capital expenditure purposes.

The Limits to Borrowing Activity table (section 4.5 of report) shows that the Council’s debt is
not more than the CFR because, as above, the CFR represents the Council’s aggregate
borrowing need.

Borrowing limits (sections 4.5 and 7.2 of report) – there are various general controls on the
Council’s borrowing activity (operational boundary, authorised limit and maturity profiles).

Investments

General controls on the Council’s investment activity to safeguard the security and liquidity
of its investments (as set out in the Council’s Annual Investment Strategy), include:

● Creditworthiness of investment counterparties.
● Counterparty money limits.
● Counterparty time limits.
● Counterparty country limits.

Page 31

Agenda Item 5
Annex 2



Borrowing Sources/ Types

PWLB (section 6 of report) is the Public Works Loan Board which is a statutory body
operating within the UK Debt Management Office, an Executive Agency of HM Treasury.
PWLB’s function is to lend money from the National Loans Fund to local authorities, and to
collect the repayments.

The Council has the following types of fixed rate loan with the PWLB:

● Annuity: fixed half-yearly payments to include principal and interest.
● Equal Instalments of Principal: equal half-yearly payments of principal together with

interest on the outstanding balance.
● Maturity: half-yearly payments of interest only with a single payment of principal at

the end of the term.

Financing Costs as a Proportion of Net Revenue Stream

This shows (section 7.1 of report), separately for HRA and GF, the percentage of the
Council’s revenue stream that is used to finance the CFR (net interest payable and Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP)).

MRP is the annual resource contribution from revenue which must be set against the CFR
so that it does not increase indefinitely.

Page 32

Agenda Item 5
Annex 2



Contract Standing Order Waivers

Governance and Audit Committee 29 November 2023

Report Author Chris Blundell, Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer

Portfolio Holder Cllr Rob Yates, Cabinet Member for Finance and Procurement

Status For Decision

Classification: Unrestricted

Key Decision No

Ward: All Wards

Executive Summary:

This is the fourth of the on-going regular update reports to the committee on the council’s
use of waivers to its Contract Standing Orders (CSOs).

The council’s purchasing decisions and processes are important because the money
involved is public money. The council’s CSOs provide a structure within which purchasing
decisions are made and implemented and contain the core obligations that all officers who
are in a position of spending the Council's money must follow.

The table below sets out the procurement route to be used depending on the value of
‘Goods, Supplies and Services’ contracts without VAT.
Value Procurement Method

Below
£10,000

Local CSO rules apply - At least one quote in advance - Consideration to be given to
suitably qualified Thanet/Supplier/s, if available.

£10,000 -
£99,999

Local CSO rules apply - At least three written quotes in advance, using the Council’s
Invitation to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with Procurement -
Consideration to be given to suitably qualified Thanet/Supplier/s, if available.

Published on Contracts Finder

£100,000 -
£177,897.99

Local CSO rules apply - At least three written tenders in advance, using the council’s
Invitation to Tender documents with advertisement by public notice.

Published on Contracts Finder, and the Kent Business Portal

£177,989.00
and above

PCR2015 & CSOs apply - Full competitive process using the Council’s invitation to
Tender documents following advertisement in the FTS for suppliers

Published on Find a Tender Services (FTS), Contracts Finder and the Kent Business
Portal

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



The limits for ‘Works’ contracts are higher and full competitive tender processes are required
for contract values above £4,447,448.00 without VAT. The council is also able to utilise
compliant purchasing schemes for direct awards and mini competition processes, as an
alternative way to procuring, without advertising as a full open process.

There is a general presumption in favour of competition and that contracts will be put out to
competitive quote/tender when they are of an estimated value of £10,000 and above,
however the requirement for the Council to conduct a competitive purchasing process can
be waived under certain circumstances. For example:

● Where the work, supply or service is not subject to UK Public Contract Regulations
2015 and is required as a matter of urgency and a delay would be likely to lead to
financial loss, personal injury or damage to property,

● Where the work is of a specialist nature and the supply market has been tested and
found to be limited

● At the discretion of the relevant Director who may proceed in a manner most
expedient to the efficient management of the service/Council with reasons recorded
in writing.

For a full list of justified circumstances, please refer to Appendix 1.

The following table summarises the Council’s approved Waivers for July to November
2023/2024 (up to 9 November):

Department /
Directorate

No. Approved Waivers for July to
Nov 2023/24 - as at 9 November
2023.

No.
Rejected
Waivers for
July to Nov
as at 9
November
2023

Total no. of
Waivers
received
for July to
Nov as at 9
November
2023Below

£100k
£100k and
above Total

Chief Executive 0 0 0 0 0

Corporate Services 6 0 6 0 6

Environment 1 1 2 1 3

Place 4 0 4 6 10

Total Number of
Waivers 11 1 12 7 19

A detailed list of July to November 2023/2024 Waivers can be seen in Appendix 4

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Recommendation(s):

1. The committee notes the report

Corporate Implications

Financial and Value for Money

As detailed within the body of the report

Legal

Local Government procurement is governed by the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and
Concessions Contracts Regulations 2016.

The Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015 require
additional contracting information to be published beyond the legislative requirements of the
Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and Concessions Contracts Regulations 2016.

Corporate

The overriding procurement policy requirement is that all public procurement must be based
on value for money, defined as “the best mix of quality and effectiveness for the least outlay
over the period of use of the goods or services bought”

Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.

There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from this report, but
the Council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on issues of diversity
amongst the local community and ensure service delivery matches these.

Corporate Priorities

This report relates to the following corporate priorities: -
● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



1. Introduction

1.1. This is the fourth of the on-going regular update reports to the committee on the council’s
use of waivers to its Contract Standing Orders (CSOs). The purpose of the report is to
provide the committee with oversight of the application of waivers to the council’s contract
standing orders have been raised, setting out the number of instances and the rationales for
the decisions taken by officers.

2. Background

2.1. The council’s purchasing decisions and processes are important because the money
involved is public money and the council has a responsibility to ensure value for money is
achieved.

2.2. The council’s CSOs provide a structure within which purchasing decisions are made and
implemented and contain the core obligations that all officers who are in a position of
spending the Council's money must follow. CSOs are the minimum requirements all officers
should follow, providing protection to the council, officers and members, and which form part
of the Council's Constitution.

2.3. CSOs apply to all contracts the council enters with the following exceptions:

● Employment contracts
● Acquisition or rental of land, buildings or other property
● Arbitration or conciliation
● Retention of legal councils and appointment of expert witnesses in legal proceedings
● Service Level Agreements setting out funding arrangement to voluntary bodies

3. General Principles Applying to All Contracts

3.1. There is a general presumption in favour of competition and that contracts will be put out to
competitive quote/tender when they are of an estimated value of £10,000 and above. This is
to ensure that the Council uses its resources efficiently, purchases quality goods, services
and works, safeguards its reputation from any implication of dishonesty or corruption and is
able to demonstrate principles of sustainability, efficiency, whole life costing and cost
savings.

3.2. All contract opportunities with a value over £25,000 and above must be published on the
government’s ‘Contracts Finder’ portal (https://www.gov.uk/contracts-finder), unless there is
a clear justified need not to do so. Subsequent awards over this value must also be
published. Contracts in excess of £100,000 are also published on the Kent Business Portal
(www.kentbusinessportal.org.uk).

3.3. The tables below sets out the procurement route to be used depending on the value of the
contract without VAT.

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



Table 1: Goods, Supplies and Services contracts

Value Procurement Method

Below £10,000
Local CSO rules apply - At least one quote in advance - Consideration to be
given to suitably qualified Thanet/Supplier/s, if available.

£10,000 - £99,999

Local CSO rules apply - At least three written quotes in advance, using the
Council’s Invitation to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with
Procurement - Consideration to be given to suitably qualified
Thanet/Supplier/s, if available.

Published on Contracts Finder

£100,000 -
£177,897.99

Local CSO rules apply - At least three written tenders in advance, using the
council’s Invitation to Tender documents with advertisement by public notice.

Published on Contracts Finder, and the Kent Business Portal

£177,898.00 and
above

PCR2015 & CSOs apply - Full competitive process using the Council’s
iInvitation to Tender documents following advertisement in the FTS for
suppliers and Part A* services,

Published on Find a Tender Services (FTS), Contracts Finder and the Kent
Business Portal

Table 2: Works Contracts
Value Procurement Method

Below £10,000
Local CSO rules apply - At least one quote in advance - Consideration to be
given to suitably qualified Thanet/Supplier/s, if available.

£10,000 - £99,999

Local CSO rules apply - At least three written quotes in advance, using the
Council’s Invitation to Quote documents or electronic method agreed with
Procurement - Consideration to be given to suitably qualified
Thanet/Supplier/s, if available.

Published on Contracts Finder

£100,000 -
£4,447,447.99

Local CSO rules apply - At least three written tenders in advance, using the
council’s Invitation to Tender documents with advertisement by public notice.

Published on Contracts Finder, and the Kent Business Portal

£4,447,448.00 and
above

PCR2015 & CSOs apply - Full competitive process using the Council’s
iInvitation to Tender documents following FTS advertisement

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Table 3: Service/Works Concession Contracts
Value Procurement Method

Below £10,000 Local CSO rules apply - At least one quote in advance - Consideration to be
given to suitably qualified Thanet/Supplier/s, if available

£10,000 -
£99,999.99

Local CSO rules apply - At least three written quotes in advance, sourced
and receipted electronically using Council’s e-procurement system -
Consideration to be given to suitably qualified Thanet/Supplier/s, if available

Published on Contracts Finder

£100,000 -
£4,447,447.99

Local CSO rules apply - At least three written tenders in advance, using the
council’s e-procurement system with advertisement by public notice

Published on Contracts Finder, and the Kent Business Portal

£4,447,448.00 and
above

Concession Contracts Regulation 2016 (ccr2016) apply - full competitive
process using the Council’s e-procurement system following FTS
advertisement

Published on Find a Tender Service (FTS), Contracts Finder and the Kent
Business Portal

3.4. The council is also able to utilise Purchasing Schemes such as framework agreements,
Dynamic Purchasing systems and other similar arrangements, such as the Government
eMarketplace as an alternative and compliant route to procuring from the market.

3.5. As a minimum, all contracts of a value of £10,000 or more shall include clauses which set
out:

● The works, supplies (goods), services, material, matters or things to be carried out or
supplied

● Specify the price to be paid, the estimated price or the basis on which the price is to
be calculated

● The time within which the contract is to be performed
● Quality requirements and/or standards which must be met
● Requirements on the contractor to hold and maintain appropriate insurance
● Adequate contract management and audit provisions
● What happens in the event that the contractor fails to comply with its contractual

obligations (in whole or in part)
● A duty on the contractor to comply with all relevant legislative requirements and

discharge of obligations under said legislation.

4. Waivers

4.1. The requirement for the Council to conduct a competitive purchasing process for contracts of
£10,000 or more can be waived under certain circumstances.

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



4.2. This arises where officers request to waiver some of the council’s CSOs in order to progress
a purchase that is deemed in the best interest of the public or service for reasons such as,
however, not limited to:

● Where a full competitive exercise is not able to be carried out for particular justifiable
reasons,

● where a competitive process was carried out, however, less than three
Quote/Tenders were achieved, in order to progress the award of a contract the
Council’s T&C are not able to be used.

Other circumstances requiring a waiver could be:

● where Legal advice has been sought for contracts of 100k and above and it has been
determined that due to the nature of the agreement being used,

● it would not be best served for the contract or framework arrangement to be executed
as a deed under the Council’s common seal,

● or where a Tender Opening is not being undertaken due to the need for a direct
award process.

4.3. CSO 12 sets out the provisions under which a waiver must be complied with, ensuring a
clear decision has been made, for what reason and by whom. For example:

● where contracts are below Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR) threshold and
the work, supply or service is required as a matter of urgency and a delay would be
likely to lead to financial loss, personal injury or damage to property,

● Where the work is of a specialist nature, the skill of the contractor is of primary
importance, and the supply market has been tested and found to be limited

● At the discretion of the relevant Director who may proceed in a manner most
expedient to the efficient management of the service/Council with reasons recorded
in writing.

4.4. For a full list of justified circumstances, please refer to Appendix 1.

5. Waiver Application Process

5.1. The waiver application is completed by the lead contracting officer know as the Responsible
Officer and reviewed by the service area’s Head of Service and sets out the following:

● details of the department and lead officer, contract information, budget information,
value to be waived, CSOs being waived

● business reasons for the application waiver (economical, technical, operational)
● evidence to demonstrate probity and value for money (selection process, market

competition, benchmarking exercises)
● Confirmation that the Responsible Officer has read and has reasonable

understanding of CSOs
● Signature of four separate officers of the Council; Lead Officer, Corporate Director,

Procurement Manager and Section 151 Officer.

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



5.2. A copy of the Waiver Application can be seen in Appendix 2.

5.3. CSOs should only be waived in exceptional circumstances and only be waived in advance.
Retrospective waivers will not be approved by the Section 151 officer and the spend will be
recorded as non-compliant with CSO in such instances.

5.4. Furthermore, note CSOs cannot be waived in all instances. For example where the value
exceeds the Public Contract Regulations 2015 threshold, which is currently £5,336,937
(£4,447,448 before VAT if applied at 20%) for works contracts and £213,447 (£177,898
before VAT if applied at 20%) for goods and services contracts.

5.5. Lack of planning in providing insufficient time available to carry out a full procurement
exercise or when going out to Quote/Tender would cause administrative, procedural burdens
or a short delay to progress, would also not be considered justified reasons for waiving
CSOs.

5.6. A comparison table of the number of Waivers across 2020/2021 to 2023/2024 (up to 9
November 2023) can be seen in Appendix 3.

6. Waivers in 2023/24 (July to November)

6.1. Table 3 below summarises the Council’s approved Waivers for 2023/2024 (July to 9
November):

Table 3: Waivers 2023/24 (July to November)

Department /
Directorate

No. Approved Waivers for July to
Nov 2023/24 - as at 9 November
2023.

No.
Rejected
Waivers for
July to Nov
as at 9
November
2023

Total no. of
Waivers
received
for July to
Nov as at 9
November
2023Below

£100k
£100k and
above Total

Chief Executive 0 0 0 0 0

Corporate Services 6 0 6 0 6

Environment 1 1 2 1 3

Place 4 0 4 6 10

Total Number of
Waivers 11 1 12 7 19

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



6.2. A comparison table of the number of Waivers for 2022/2023 (July to 9 November) and
2023/2024 (July to 9 November) can be seen in Appendix 3. This also includes the number
of waivers approved in 2023/2024 up to 9 November 2023 and the previous years from
2020/2021.

6.3. It was announced in April 2023 that a new corporate structure was to be implemented and
the final recruitment took place at the end of August 2023. As part of the new corporate
structure, a Directorate structure of Place, Environment, Corporate Services was
implemented replacing the previous structure of Operational Services, Deputy Chief
Executive and the Corporate Governance. This has therefore been reflected in the July to
November 2023 Report. Due to the complexities of the change in organisational structure it
is not possible to directly comparae to previous years figures.

6.4. There have been 19 Waiver applications received as of 9 November 2023 for the 2023/2024
July to November period. Of the waivers received only 12 were approved. The majority of
Waiver applications continue to be under the 100K threshold and when compared to the
same period of waiver figures in 2022/2023, they are very similar in number to those
approved in the previous financial year. When comparing the total number of waivers
received for 2023/2024 up to 9 November to the same period of time in 2022/2023 the
number of waivers received is almost the same, however, the number of waivers approved is
significantly less.

6.5. During this July to November period, reasons for waivers have included where the Council
Standard Clauses have not been able to be used, limited markets; where only one supplier
could provide the full requirements and the majority of Waivers approved were where it was
considered that a direct award was in the best interests of the management of the
service/Council; for cost saving reasons, complexities of the project or where the risk of not
achieving the requirement by a specific deadline would significantly impact the Council’s
internal services.

6.6. Within the 7 Waiver applications rejected, these were on the basis of being considered
non-compliant with CSOs and the Financial Procedure Rules (FPRs). Advice was given on
how to mitigate the same circumstances occurring in the future.

6.7. A detailed list of 2023/2024 (including July to November) Waivers can be seen in Appendix
4 and a breakdown of Nature of Waiver Categories can be seen in Appendix 5.

7. Ongoing Objectives

In June, the Council’s ‘Head of Finance, Procurement, Risk commissioned a Procurement
Process Review. The purpose of this review was to look at whether the process can be
streamlined to meet the ever changing needs, priorities and of the whole organisation,
ensuring documents remain fit for purpose, robust processes remain in place compliant with
PCR2015 and CCR2016, market changes are taken into consideration when considering
thresholds, the identification of any gaps that may exist and resources available to fulfil

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



requirements. The review has been undertaken by an independent party who engaged with
the key stakeholders from across the organisation responsible for commissioning contracts.
Engagement on the waiver process was part of this and would be subject to
recommendations following the review, which would be considered and incorporated into the
waiver process and as part of the Council’s refresh of CSOs. The outcome of this review is
also being considered as part of the Council's review of its arrangements for project
management.

The previous report advised that the Council’s CSOs were due to be refreshed in 2023,
which if approved, may include an increase to the value of works, supplies and services that
are considered to be of quotation threshold, currently £10,000 and above. It had been
anticipated the new threshold value would be £25,000 and will enable officers to seek one
quote up to a value of £24,999, which should enable procurements more quickly without
having to undertake a full competitive process, for what would be considered lower risk or
low value requirements. Should an increase in thresholds be recommended and approved
as part of the CSOs refresh, a waiver would no longer be required to waive a competitive
process below that agreed value at CSO 6.6.

7.1. One of the other amendments being considered that may assist the Council streamline its
internal processes is the amendment to wording surrounding the Standard Clauses inclusion
for Purchasing Schemes (Frameworks). There are a number of Frameworks the Council
uses, which do not allow provision for additional Terms and Conditions to be applied. In
these circumstances the Council would not be able to include its own Standard Clauses and
comply with its own CSOs requirements, without waiving this requirement. In consultation
with Procurement and Legal, where the Council is prevented from from including its own
standard Clauses within a Framework Agreement, it has been proposed to amend the CSOs
wording to acknowledge this as a valid circumstance outside of the Council’s control and
would therefore, not require a Waiver to be submitted.

7.2. The Procurement Act 2023 has just received royal assent and will be coming into force in
October 2024. It is anticipated a full revision of the CSOs would be required to support the
new Procurement Regulations. Whilst an initial training session has been attended by the
Procurement Manager and Section 151 Officer on what the Council may expect to be
introduced in the new Public Contract Regulations, the full guidance has not yet been made
available to the Council. The Legal Team are also in the process of seeking available training
sessions now the Bill has been passed and will both work together to ensure the Council
continues to be prepared for the change in regulations and the impact on the Council’s
processes. Further updates will be provided when more information becomes available and
how this could affect the Waiver application process.

7.3. In Previous updates, it has been reported that full due diligence checks are also continuing
to be carried out for all waiver applications where the waiver is deemed justified, to best
protect the Council. These checks consist of carrying out a financial appraisal to confirm the
supplier can meet the Council’s minimum financial requirements for a contract of that value
or combined value where the supplier is delivering more than one contract for the Council.
The due diligence also includes confirming the supplier has the appropriate level of
insurance cover in place that the Council would need to mitigate the risk. This approach was
reviewed again in September 2023 by the Director of Corporate Services and Section 151

Page 42

Agenda Item 6

https://bills.parliament.uk/bills/3159


Officer, the Head of Finance, Procurement and Risk and the Procurement Manager
(Operations) to ensure the level of due diligence checks continue to meet the Council’s
current requirements and it was deemed the approach continues to be appropriate for the
majority of waivers received. Where the nature of the circumstances, however, requires
extreme urgency for business critical circumstances, such as Health and Safety reasons,
and carrying out the full due diligence checks and PIF completion may cause additional
delays, a decision would continue to be taken by the Section 151 Officer as to whether the
full due diligence checks will be required.

7.4. CSOs training and refresher training has continued to be undertaken to help ensure a
greater understanding of CSOs; how and why these should be followed, the use of waivers,
and an improvement to contract management, helping to mitigate the need for unnecessary
waivers. Part of the training is on the Waiver application process and understanding that
waivers are for exceptional circumstances only once all compliant options have been
considered. As noted in the previous report to this committee, waiver applications continue
to be received supported by evidence and the Procurement Initiation Form at the outset now,
which greatly assists with processing the waiver applications in a smooth and timely manner.

7.5. Training of Officers will also need to be refreshed as part of the CSOs refresh and again
ready for when the new Procurement Act comes into force. It is anticipated that this will be
undertaken as part of a training programme being introduced to ensure that all officers who
are in a position of spending the Council's money are identified and all training requirements
are met.

Contact Officer: Chris Blundell, (Acting Deputy Chief Executive)
Reporting to: Colin Carmichael (Interim Chief Executive)

List of Appendices:

Appendix 1 - CSO 12 Waivers extract
Appendix 2 - CSO Waiver Application
Appendix 3 - Comparison table of Waivers across 2020/2021 to 2023/2024
Appendix 4 - Detailed list of 2023/2024 Waivers (April to 9 November)
Appendix 5 - Category of Waivers 2023/2024 (April to November)

Corporate Consultation

Finance: Not applicable
Legal: Ingrid Brown (Head of Legal and Democracy & Monitoring Officer)

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Extract from Contract Standing Orders (CSOs) October 2018

12 Waivers

12.1 The requirement for the Council to conduct a competitive purchasing process for
contracts of £10,000 or more may be waived in the following circumstances:

12.1.1 For contracts which are not subject to the EU Rules, the work, supply or
service is required as a matter of urgency and a delay would be likely to
lead to financial loss, personal injury or damage to property; or

12.1.2 the circumstances set out in the Public Contract Regulations 2015
Regulation 32 apply (whether or not the contract is of a type which is
subject to the application of the EU Rules); or

12.1.3 where the supply is for parts for existing machinery, or where the terms of
supply of equipment require that maintenance be undertaken by a
specified provider; or

12.1.4 where the work is of a specialist nature, the skill of the contractor is of
primary importance, and the supply market has been tested and found to
be limited; or

12.1.5 where the supply is for maintenance to existing IT equipment or software,
including enhancements to current software, which can only be performed
by the licensed developer or owner of the system; or

12.1.6 at the discretion of the relevant Corporate Director who may proceed in a
manner most expedient to the efficient management of the
service/Council with reasons recorded in writing.

12.2 A Responsible Officer who seeks a waiver of Contract Standing Orders shall do
so only in advance and only in exceptional circumstances. Further guidance
on what may constitute exceptional circumstances permitting waiver of these
Contract Standing Orders is set out in the Council’s Purchasing Guide.

12.3 All waivers from these Contract Standing Orders must be:

12.3.1 Fully documented

12.3.2 Subject to a written report in an approved format, available on the
intranet, to be submitted in advance to the relevant Corporate Director
for endorsement which shall include reasons for the waiver which
demonstrate that the waiver is genuinely required

12.3.3 Subject to comment and/or endorsement as to existence of exceptional
circumstances by the Strategic Procurement Manager

12.3.4 Subject to approval in advance by the Deputy Chief Executive/Section
151 Officer or his/her authorised representative, who shall record that
they have considered the reasons for the waiver and that they are
satisfied that the circumstances justifying the waiver are genuinely
exceptional.

12.4 All decisions on waivers must take into account:

12.4.1 Probity

12.4.2 Best value/value for money principles.

1

Page 45

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1



12.5 For contracts subject to the EU Rules, any waiver from the requirement for
competition must meet without exception the conditions set out in the EU Rules,
in addition to the general requirements above.

12.6 Once a waiver is approved in respect of a specific contract value, the waiver
shall cover contract spend up to the next spend threshold negating the need for a
further waiver application on occasion when there may be a slight increase in
contract spend.

Page 46

Agenda Item 6
Annex 1



APPLICATION TO WAIVER CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS
(FOR CONTRACTS IN EXCESS OF £9,999)

This form must state appropriate CSO numbers under which application is made with
sufficient explanation as to:

1) Actions/process to be waived
2) The CSO which provides authority to apply waiver
3) The business reasons and circumstances leading to the application (i.e.
economical/technical/operational)

Please note – Waivers can only be sought in advance. (CSO 12.2) Retrospective CSO
waivers will not be authorised. Waivers can only be agreed where informed by sound
business reasons.

Responsible Officer: Tel Ext: Date:

Department: Section

Contract Title and brief
description
Supplier

Existing Supplier Yes/No

Value of total contract including:
proposed extensions and options

Expenditure Code:

Allocated Budget:

CSO Clause/s number/s to be
waived on which application
based
(N.B. all non-waived clauses will
still apply)
Specific CSO clause number
providing authority to apply to
waiver (as defined under CSO12)

Please describe reason for waiver (This should give clear explanation as to the circumstances
that have lead you to require the CSO waiver i.e. a) what has gone wrong, including reason for
failure as applicable which must include remedial action being taken to avoid a reoccurrence b)
steps and reason required to utilise an opportunity)

CSO WAIVER FORM Updated August 2020

- 1 - Page 47

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2



All decisions on waivers must take into account probity and value for money. Please
provide evidence to demonstrate this has been achieved.

List information (This should include information such as selection process/market
competition/benchmarking)

I understand and will ensure all necessary contract documentation appropriate to Council
requirements is in place and validated. These to include financial check, Insurances, CIS
details, Health and Safety, Equalities and Diversity, Child Protection and Safeguarding
Generally, TUPE as and where appropriate to the nature of the contract and as required by
Council procedures.

The information provided on this form is correct and detail provided is representative of the
full requirement and circumstances. I understand approval is based on information provided
and therefore limited to the scope contained. The proposed expenditure is within the
Budget/Capital Programme and Policy Framework and I have read the Council’s Contract
Standing Orders and have complied with all the requirements.

NB Officers who breach the Council’s Contract Standing Orders will be subject to
disciplinary proceedings.

Responsible Officer completing form Date:

Name

Signature

CSO WAIVER FORM Updated August 2020

- 2 - Page 48

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2



Having rigorously challenged this application I agree that this waiver demonstrates reasons as
allowed for in CSOs and is therefore approved by me as genuinely required.

Corporate Director Date

Name

Signature

Strategic Procurement Manager/Senior Procurement
Officer Date

Name

Signature

I have considered the reasons for the waiver and I am satisfied that the circumstances are
genuinely exceptional as allowed for in CSOs and is therefore approved by me as the
Section 151 officer.

Section 151 Officer Date

Name

Signature

ALL SIGNATURES (X 4) MUST BE PRESENT FOR THIS APPLICATION TO BE VALID

Where a CSO waiver application has been fully approved this will “cover off” increases in contract

value as long as, any subsequent increase/s does not take the contract value over the “value

threshold” that the original waiver application was approved for i.e. value threshold

£10,000-£99,999.99 applied, therefore, if the value increased over this threshold, say to £101,000 a

new waiver application would need to be sought.

CSO WAIVER FORM Updated August 2020

- 3 - Page 49

Agenda Item 6
Annex 2



This page is intentionally left blank



DIRECTORATE 2023-2024 2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021* 2023-2024 2022-2023 2021-2022 2020-2021*
Below 100k 100k and above Below 100k 100k and above Below 100k 100k and above Below 100k 100k and above

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 1 7 8 1 1 0 7 0 7 1 1 0
CORPORATE SERVICES (Previously 
named Deptuty Chief Executives 
Directorate and included department 
areas now within the Place 
Directorate) 8 29 20 18 8 0 25 4 17 3 16 2
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE n/a 0 3 6 n/a n/a 0 0 2 1 4 2
ENVIRONMENT (Previously 
Operational Services) 7 9 22 29 4 3 8 1 19 3 27 2
EK SERVICES n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 0 0 0 0 0 0
EAST KENT HOUSING n/a n/a n/a 1 n/a n/a 0 0 n/a n/a 1 0
PLACE (New directorate - was 
previously under Deputy Chief 
Executives Directorate, also now 
known as Corporate Services 4 n/a n/a n/a 4 0 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

20 45 53 55 17 3 40 5 45 8 49 6

*Now includes contracts previously under EKH, EK Services and Corporate Governance Directorates
*Includes some additional Waivers due to Covid impact
*Not a complete year - up to 9 Nov 2023 only
*Includes 2 waivers that were not included on the previous April to June 2023 Schedule of Waivers Report
*Now includes contracts previously under Deputy Chief Executive Directorate

Comparison of totals July to 9 November 2023/2024 same period in 2022/2023

2023-2024 - 
(July to Nov)

2022-2023- 
(July to Nov)

2023-2024 - 
(July to Nov)

2022-2023 - 
(July to Nov)

Below 100k 100k and above Below 100k 100k and above
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 0 1 0 0 1 0
CORPORATE SERVICES (Previously 
named Deptuty Chief Executives 
Directorate and included department 
areas now within the Place 
Directorate) 6 8 6 0 7 1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE n/a 0 n/a n/a 0 0
ENVIRONMENT (Previously 
Operational Services) 2 3 1 1 2 1
PLACE (New directorate - was 
previously under Deputy Chief 
Executives Directorate, also now 
known as Corporate Services 4 n/a 4 0 n/a n/a

12 12 11 1 10 2

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Service Contract Name Reason for Waiver Contractor Value of total 
Contract Date (S151 Officer) Category

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Ramsgate Harbour : 
Conservation Management 
Plan to support levelling up 
funded projects

In addition to work already being undertaken by 
the appointed supplier via a compliant Dynamic 
Purchasing System route to the market, it has 
recently been identified by a Stakeholder that a 
Conservation Management Plan is required to 
support all the projects within the surrounding 
areas of the Ramsgate Harbour listings. This 
requirement was not known about at the time the 
original contract was commissioned, however, 
would have been included in the initial project 
had the Council been aware of its requirement. 
The waiver was requesting to add this additional 
work to the current contract, with a supplier who 
has the skills required and significant background 
knowledge as well as continuity of approach and 
information, which will reduces costs and help 
achieve value for money.

Curl La Tourelle Head Architects £14,995.00 22/05/2023 Unforseen additional requirements identified during 
contract

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S DEPT

Unoccupied property 
security - Winter Gardens - 
Waiver Refresh No3

The Waiver is for the continued security provision 
at the winter gardens for another 12 months. To 
go out to appoint a different supplier via a 
competitive process could incur a potential 
period of time the security provision is not 
provided, increased costs and risk of further 
damage to the building to put up and take down 
current security measures. 

Citiguard £69,421,44.00 27/04/2023 Full competitive process cannot be undertaken due to 
extreme urgency

Harbour Arm UKPN New 
Electricity Supply

This Waiver is for a direct award to a supplier for 
a new electricity supply to be able to deliver the 
current/future electricity supply requirements for 
the Harbour Arm. The current supply via Droit 
House is no longer fit for purpose with the 
increasing energy demand for users on the 
Harbour Arm and has resulted in instances of 
loss of power to all connected due to overloading 
and increase Health & Safety risks. The supplier 
is the only supplier in the region who can deliver 
the requirement due to exclusive rights to install 
new metered electrical supplies to properties 
both domestic and commercial. 

UK Power Networks £60,450.51 17/05/23 Requirement can only be delivered by a particular 
supplier

Hosting, support and 
development of corporate

A new contract was required to be put in place, 
however, it was identified that additional costs 
would be incurred for migration and onboarding, 
along with additional resources required to 
support should the Council move to a new 
platform. A direct award to the incumbent 
supplier was, therefore, requested via a Waiver, 
to mitigate the additional costs involved to move, 
risk of delay with the incumbent should they 
withdraw support/hosting of the current platform, 
and when considering the platform is currently fit 
for purchase with no real need identified to 
undertake this amount of development work 
again at this time.

LUV Corp Ltd £99,750.00 13/07/2023 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 4



Service Contract Name Reason for Waiver Contractor Value of total 
Contract Date (S151 Officer) Category

Microsoft User Client Access 
Licenses (CAL) 2022

It was identified Perpetual Microsoft Client Access 
Licenses (CALs) were required urgently to support 
security updates, compliance and business continuity 
and the Council could be subject to fines if not put in 
place. The licenses are part of wider dependencies 
and other work was also unable to start on the new 
servers until the licenses were in place. The existing 
servers would be de-supported in early October, 
which left insufficient time for a full ITQ process to be 
undertaken and completion of the work before this 
deadline, with the new servers would take an 
esitmated timeframe of 2 months to build. A waiver 
was, therefore, requested for a direct award to a 
supplier who could meet the requirement and strict 
timescales for completion.

Softcat Ltd £14,435.00 25/07/2023 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

SAN (Storage Area Network) & 
Fibre Switch Infrastructure for 
Data Centre

A compliant process was undertaken via a 
Framework, which unfortunately achieved no viable 
bids which being considered cost prohibitive. Due to 
the urgent nature of getting the requirement in place, it 
was considered undertaking a further competitive 
process would negatively impact the requirements 
being able to be delivered in time and a direct award 
to a supplier that could meet the full requirements in 
terms of both Quality and Cost was requested via a 
Waiver.

Nexstor Ltd £65,000.00 06/09/2023 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

Firewall Replacement

It was the Council's intention to use a compliant 
framework via a Mini Competition, however, the 
provider of the firewall was not able to provide 
pricing to any bidders for a 3 week period or 
longer due to a business transformation project 
they were starting. For fairness to bidders, the 
Council could not start the live process until the 
firewall provider's project was complete. With a 1 
month mobilisation period needed and a start 
date required of 4 December 2023 to meet a 
April 2024 end date with no flexibility, there was 
insufficient time to undertake a process with this 
framework or another competitive process to be 
undertaken. A direct award was, therefore, 
requested via a Wiaver to appoint a supplier that 
already had received pricing from the firewall 
provider and that could meet the Council's 
timescales.

Phoenix Software Ltd £31,836.71 25/09/2023 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

OKTA Licenses

A compliant framework process was undertaken 
via a government Framework and a bidder 
identified that best met the requirements and 
cost, however, there was not provision to include 
TDC Standard Clauses, therefore, the waiver 
was requested to waive this requirement in the 
Council's CSOs.

Cloud Technology Solutions Limited £21,891.17 28/9/2023 TDC Terms and Conditions not being used

Office 365 for Civica (EK 
Services)

This waiver was requested to waive inclusion of 
TDC Standard Clauses, where there was no 
provision within the framework to include them. A 
compliant process was undertaken via a 
Framework to appoint a supplier that was 
identified that could meet the full requirements.

Planet IT Limited £45,300.00 19/10/2023 TDC Terms and Conditions not being used

ENVIRONMENT

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 4



Service Contract Name Reason for Waiver Contractor Value of total 
Contract Date (S151 Officer) Category

Electricity SMART Metering 
Solution - Licensing, 
Support and Cloud Hosting

The introduction of the Electricity SMART 
Metering Solution was agreed during the Star 
Chamber process, to upgrade the existing smart 
metered system currently in place. The proposed 
supplier was identified as there is no initial cost 
of equipment upgrade, which would reduce costs 
and the equipment is warranted for 5 years. It 
was considered there was also a risk if the 
upgrade was not implemented in that the present 
obsolete system becomes defective and 
customers would be able to access unmetered 
electricity. Going with another supplier would 
increase costs as the Council would have to pay 
additional costs for the equipment.

Meter-Macs Ltd £158,490.00 27/04/2023 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

Commercial Waste 
Collections

A Cabinet decision was made to terminate the 
Commercial Waste service on 31st May 2023. 
This did not allow sufficient time to follow the full 
procurement process and issue a contract to 
start by 1st June 2023. The waiver enabled a 6 
month contract to be put in place via a direct 
award to allow sufficient time to follow the full 
procurement process and meet the Council's 
obligations to comply with Section 34 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990.

Lili waste Service Ltd £18,400 03/05/23 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

Legal Work relating to Port 
Of Ramsgate 

The waiver is for a direct award to a previous 
supplier who provided initial advice and a 
proposal to inform a report agreed at cabinet, to 
progress the Port delivery project. With the tight 
timescales for delivery and the specific nature of 
this project being complex, external advice would 
be required anyway in order to facilitate if it had 
been delivered in-house. Agreement was, 
therefore, given for the work to be commissioned 
externally on this occasion, with a supplier who 
has demonstrated understanding of TDC 
requirements and specific experience and 
capability in the nature of work required 
(maritime/port/procurement and legal aspects).

Ashfords LLP £142,730.00 10/05/2023 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

4 x Walk Behind Sweepers

The specific equipment can only be provided by 
one supplier. No compliant routes to the market 
could be found, therefore, this waiver is for a 
direct award to the identified supplier who can 
provide the equipment.

Commercial Services Trading Ltd - 
Supplier of vehicle is Addex Group 
(Gatwick)

£98,378.98 31/05/2023 Requirement can only be delivered by a particular 
supplier

Capital MEWO - Cherry 
Picker

Due to two cherry picker machines being 
returned under warranty, alternative cherry 
pickers were being hired in the interm. This 
enabled a alternative brand to be tested that met 
the required standard. A Second hand machine 
was then identified, with the options of new 
machines explored and continuing to hire being 
deemed too costly. The waiver enabled a direct 
award to a supplier which could offer the required 
machine, with 12 month service, a 6 month 
LOLER certificate and a 30 day warranty to 
protect the purchase, along with the machine 
being examined by a TDC Mechanical engineer 
to confirm it wsa in satisfactory condition. 

AFI-Uplift Limited £28,000.00 01/06/23 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 4



Service Contract Name Reason for Waiver Contractor Value of total 
Contract Date (S151 Officer) Category

Purchase of 4 x 12t Open 
Back Mini RCV vehicles

A compliant framework process was 
undertaken via a government Framework 
under a direct award process, where the 
supplier was identified as being the only 
supplier that met the requirements. The 
framework, however, had no provision to 
include TDC Standard Clauses, therefore, 
the waiver was requested to waive this 
requirement in the Council's CSOs.

Dennis Eagle Limited £559,530.00 30/10/2023 Requirement can only be delivered by a particular 
supplier

Virtual Permits

A Framework was used as a compliant route 
to the Market and a direct award option 
chosen to appoint the incumbent supplier, as 
it was deemed that changing and 
implementing a new system at this time 
would incur additional costs along with the 
purchase of the licenses. The current system 
is fully integrated with the Council's Parking 
system and therefore, it would also require 
additional time and resources if the Council 
were to change to another system, with the 
additional impact to the public of changing to 
a new process when there would be no 
additional benefit for them at this time. The 
framework, however, had no provision to 
include TDC Standard Clauses, therefore, 
the waiver was requested to waive this 
requirement in the Council's CSOs.

Cadence Innova Ltd 62,500.00 30/10/2023 TDC Terms and Conditions not being used

REJECTED Marine Toilet Pod

A requirement for a new Marine Toilet Pod to 
replace the existing pod in poor condition was 
identified back in April 2023, however, a waiver 
was received in July 2023 notifying of an urgent 
requirement and requesting to waiver a 
competitive ITQ process. It was considered that 
too much time was taken under engaging with 
the market between April-July, which could have 
been spent undetaking a competitive process 
ready for implementation of the pod in the 
summer period. The waiver was not approved, 
however, it was also deemed that there was a 
reputational risk to the Council if the pod was not 
replaced and the purchase was made under non-
compliant spend.

Mitanium Ltd. Waiver Rejected

PLACE

Ramsgate Future High Street 
Projects 

A design requirement was identified, however, it had 
not been possible to include the requirement in a 
previous contract or earlier than at this point, as there 
was no guarantee the Council would be awarded the 
funding. Cabinet approvals and property owner 
approvals were needed to design the property and 
further project approvals were required after this, 
along with the Council being in the process of 
acquiring 5a Broadstreet (Aug/Sept). This put further 
time constraints on the delivery of the full project in 
time by March 2024. A direct award via a waiver was, 
therefore, requested to appoint a supplier who could 
meet the requirements and within a tight timeframe.

Engineers Haskins Robinson Waters Ltd £19,750.00 08/09/2023 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 4



Service Contract Name Reason for Waiver Contractor Value of total 
Contract Date (S151 Officer) Category

Unit 1 Blenheim Close, 
Pysons Road Industrial 
Estate, Broadstairs - Lining or 
new internal gutter provision

An internal gutter repair was required due to gutters 
being identified in poor condition during investigative 
works and which would prevent the Council moving an 
existing tenant into this unit until the repair work was 
completed and rent to be lost whilst vacent. To identify 
the works required scaffolding was needing to be 
errected and it was identified that additional costs 
would be incurred for another supplier to put up their 
own scaffolding, therefore, continuing with this 
supplier who could meet the requirement would 
reduce further costs. It was also considered that 
moving the tenant into this unit would also free up the 
unit they were currently in, which was smaller and 
easier to market in the current climate.

J Rospo Building Contractors Ltd £15,514.25 22/09/23 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

Selective Licensing Feasibility 
Study (including financial 
modelling and options 
appraisal)

It was identified that only one consultancy was set up 
to provide the service to develop and implement 
selective licensing designations requiring Government 
approval. As the skill of the contractor was of primary 
importance and in the absence of any other multi-
disciplinary specialist consultancy operating in what 
was considered a niche area of work, a direct award 
was requested via a waiver.

Cadence Innova Ltd £32,000.00 12/10/23 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

Structural Survey Roofs at 
Ramsgate & Margate Sports 
Centres (PV Bids) 

An urgent requirement was identified for a Consultant 
Structural Engineer was needed to determine the 
suitability of the existing roof structures at Hartsdown 
and Ramsgate Leisure Centers, to support a bid 
application for proposed Solar PV panels. The Council 
was unable to apply for the bid, unless it was able to 
provide confirmation on the Bid Application that the 
existing structures were suitable. Whilst a number of 
suppliers were approached for a quote, only one 
bidder responded and was able to meet the 
requirement in the limited timeframe left available. A 
waiver was therefore requested for a direct award to 
this supplier.

BSF Consulting Engineers Ltd £12,400.00 23/10/2023 In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient 
management of the service/Council

REJECTED
Civils & Structural - Fishing 
Facilities A previously combined contract opportunity for these 

6 contracts was captured under Public Contract 
Regulations 2015, and achieved no viable bids over 
two competitive processes. 6 waiver applications were 
subsequently requested to be reviewed for 6 direct 
award appointments. Without sufficient evidence to 
justify the disaggregation was lawful in regard to 
PCR2015 and in compliance with FPRs and CSOs, 
the waiver applications were not in a position to be 
approved. It was deemed that alternative compliant 
routes would have been an option for consideration, 
via a further competitive process if time would allow, 
however, it was decided undertaking a further 
competitive process could not be achieved without 
impacting other programmed work downstream and 
the risk of not delivering related projects was a high 
risk. On this ocassion the waivers were not approved, 
however, with the risk of not delivering was still high, 
and therefore, the purchases were continued to be 
made under what is considered non-compliant spend.

REJECTED Civils & Structural - Green 
Campus

REJECTED Civils & Structural - Heritage 
Projects

REJECTED MEP Consultant - Fishing 
Facilities

REJECTED MEP Consultant - Green 
Campus

REJECTED MEP Consultant - Heritage 
Projects

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Waiver Rejected
4.8%

TDC Terms and Conditions not being used
14.3%

In the best interest and most expedient to the efficient management of the service/Council
57.1%

Unforseen additional requirements identified during contract
4.8%

Full competitive process cannot be undertaken due to extreme urgency
4.8%

Requirement can only be delivered by a particular supplier
14.3%

Appendix 5 - Category of Waivers 2023-2024 (April to Nov)

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 6
A

nnex 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



External Auditor’s Annual Audit Report on Value for Money

Governance and audit 29 November 2023

Report Author Chris Blundell, Director of Corporate Services and
Section 151 Officer

Portfolio Holder Cllr Rob Yates, Portfolio Holder for Corporate Services

Status For Decision

Classification: Unrestricted

Key Decision No

Ward: All wards

Executive Summary:

The Council’s external auditor Grant Thornton is required to report its audit findings from its
audit of the accounts to G&A, but this year, due to the fact that this report covers 3 years
rather than 1, it has been taken to Cabinet for endorsement.

Recommendation(s):

1. The External Auditors Annual Report covering Value for Money for the years 20/21
through to 22/23 be approved as set out in Annex 1

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money

There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

Legal

This is a statutory requirement in accordance with the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 and, Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and The Code of Audit Practice

Corporate

This is part of the external audit process.

Risk Management

No action on this item would result in non delivery of the statutory requirement pertaining to
the accounts, this could result in:

● Loss of confidence

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



● Reputational damage

Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.

Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.

Corporate Priorities

This report relates to the following corporate priorities: -
● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1. Introduction and Background

1.1. The auditors are required to reach a formal conclusion on whether the council has
put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money.

1.2. The council received a number of objections to the accounts on the grounds of the
council’s arrangements to secure value for money which has delayed reporting.

1.3. The report on value for money covers the 3 years from 2020/21 to 2022/23. It
therefore covers a period in the council’s history of significant upheaval and revisions
to its senior leadership and governance arrangements.

1.4. It would be fair to say that the report concludes that the first two of those three years
were a period in which the necessary steps were being taken to identify and address
the problems. The last of those years, 2022/23, is a period in which significant
progress has been made to resolve the problems. The details of this process are set
out below.

1.5. The Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton, issued a report under Section 24 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 on 12 October 2021. That report is a
formal report to a Council that requires the Council to take necessary steps to resolve
perceived failures of governance and leadership. It is a most unusual step, and
significant to the difficulties the Council was facing.

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



1.6. Following on from this and directly as a result of the recommendations of the External
Auditor’s report,, an Independent Monitoring Officer (IMO) was appointed by the
Council, with a remit to investigate the issues raised by the External Auditor, and to
look more broadly at the governance of the Council. The IMO produced his report,
which was considered by Council on 19th May 2022. The recommendations made
by the IMO were approved by Council.

1.7. As a result of the recommendations, the Council appointed Chris Blundell as Director
of Corporate Services and Section 151 Officer. Sameera Khan was appointed as the
Interim Monitoring Officer on 18 July 2022, and Colin Carmichael was appointed as
Interim Chief Executive (and Head of the Paid Service) on 20th July, and is under
contract until at least the end of July 2024. As the Council’s Statutory Officers, they
have worked with the Service Directors (now Heads of Service) to form the Council’s
Corporate Management Team (CMT). One of the remits of the CMT has been to work
with Councillors to implement the recommendations of the External Auditor and the
IMO.

1.8. The Chief Executive reported to Cabinet and to full Council last March to advise
Councillors of the progress made on implementing the recommendations of the
Section 24 report form the external auditor, and those from the IMO. Those reports
were noted by Council. They are available to Councillors as the agendas for both
meetings were public. We will not, therefore, go into detail about the content of the
reports.

1.9. The issues that remained outstanding, when the reports were considered last March,
were:

- improving the ability of Councillors to get appropriate information from Officers
- Improving the Council’s approach to Project Management and Procurement
- Training for Councillors to enable them to carry out their duties more effectively.
- Taking each of these in turn

1.10. Progress is being made on the flow of information, but we acknowledge that there is
still much to do. The emergence of hybrid working after the pandemic has caused
problems which CMT is working hard to resolve. Councillors will note that the budget
proposals contain a post to be created that will support Councillors in carrying out
their Ward duties and improving the information flow.

1.11. We are making substantial progress on Project Management and Procurement. One
of the recommendations of the IMO was to conduct a review of the process used to
reconstruct Berths 4 and 5 at Ramsgate Port. That review was conducted by the
Internal Auditor, and her report was also presented to Cabinet and Council last
March. CMT accepted all her recommendations. We have commissioned a review of
our procurement processes, and have also engaged a consultant to work with us on
a complete review of our project management processes, coupled with across the
board training for relevant officers.

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



1.12. We deferred the recommendation on training for Councillors until after our election
last May. Since then a comprehensive tracing programme has been delivered for all
newly elected Councillors.

1.13. In addition to these actions, two other changes have been made.

1.14. The Chief Executive has conducted a complete review of the senior management
structure. That was approved by General Purposes Committee in January. The
posts of Director were filled by the Appointment Panel, and the posts of Head of
Service have been filled by the Chief Executive.

1.15 The Chief Executive has reviewed the functioning of CMT. Perhaps unusually, it
comprises not only the CE and Directors, but also all Heads of Service. The purpose
is to include all senior managers in the corporate direction and strategy of the
Council.

1.16 However, there are some issues which require more specific membership, and the
contribution of Officers who are not members of CMT. We have, therefore, created
three sub groups of CMT to do this. They are:

● a Project Management Working Group - which will commission, monitor,
take officer decisions on, and oversee the completion of major projects.

● a Governance Working Group - which will look in detail at reports from
Internal Audit, ensuring that recommendations made by the Auditor are
properly considered and implemented - which has been a problem in the
past. It will also look in detail at Health and Safety monitoring.

● Property Working Group - to reach conclusions at Officer level on issues
relating to property owned by the Council.

1.17 Cabinet was asked to consider and endorse the management action outlined above
relating to the Auditors Annual report at its meeting of the 16 November, which it has
done..

Contact Officer: Chris Blundell Director of Corporate Resource and Section 151 Officer

Annex List

Annex 1 External Auditors Annual Report

Background Papers

None

Corporate Consultation

Finance: N/A

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



Legal: N/A

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 67

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

 

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 92

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•P
age 95

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•P
age 96

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 97

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 98

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 100

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 101

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 102

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 103

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 104

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 106

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 107

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 108

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 109

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



P
age 116

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 122

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



P
age 123

A
genda Item

 7
A

nnex 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



External Audit Plan 2021/22

Governance & Audit Committee 29 November 2023

Report Author Chris Blundell (Director of Corporate Services - S151)

Portfolio Holder Cllr Rob Yates, Cabinet Member Corporate Services.

Status For Information

Classification: Unrestricted

Key Decision No

Executive Summary:

The External Audit Plan 2021/22 has been developed by our appointed external auditor,
Grant Thornton LLP, and sets out the proposed external audit work and fee relating to the
2021/22 annual audit at Thanet.

Recommendation(s):

1. That the external audit plan be noted.

Corporate Implications

Financial and Value for Money

The proposed fee for the annual audit can be met from existing budget provision.

Legal

The audit of the Council’s accounts is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015

Corporate

The audit of the accounts is a statutory requirement

Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.

Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.

There are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report.

Page 125

Agenda Item 8



Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: -

● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1.0 Introduction and Background

1.1 Grant Thornton, the Council’s appointed external auditor, has submitted their final
External Audit Plan for the 2021/22 annual audit, attached at Annex 1, following
consultation with the Section 151 Officer and his deputy.

1.2 The report also sets out the proposed fees for the 2021-22 audits, which can be met from
existing budget provision. Any variation to the fees must be approved by the independent
Public Sector Audit Appointments body.

1.3 The committee is asked to note the report and make comments as appropriate.

1.4 A representative from Grant Thornton will attend the meeting to present the report.

Contact Officer: Matthew Sanham (Head of Finance, Procurement and Risk)

Reporting to: Chris Blundell (Director of Corporate Services - S151)

Annex List

Annex 1: External Audit Plan

Corporate Consultation

Finance: N/A

Legal: N/a

Page 126

Agenda Item 8



P
age 127

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 128

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1

mailto:matt.dean@uk.gt.com
mailto:Hameem.Gulraiz@uk.gt.com
mailto:Marcella.EA.Cato@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 129

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 130

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 131

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 132

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 134

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf
https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

13

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

E-financials Accounts Payable, Accounts 

Receivables, Ledger and Reporting

• Streamlined ITGC design assessment

Civica Council Tax, NNDR and Housing Benefits • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

iTrent Payroll • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

P
age 139

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

.

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

15

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

P
age 142

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf
https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 143

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

18

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 144

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

19

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 145

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



Commercial in confidence

Manual Adjustments to the Statement of Accounts

We will review the 

manual adjustments 

posted to assess if 

they lead to material 

misstatement.

Valuation Approach of Investment Properties 

We will review the 

level of asset not 

revalued in year and 

assess Council’s 

assessment

P
age 146

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



P
age 147

A
genda Item

 8
A

nnex 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Quarterly Internal Audit Update Report

Governance & Audit Committee 29th November 2023

Report Author Head of Internal Audit

Portfolio Holder Cllr Rob Yates, Cabinet Member Corporate Services.

Status For Decision

Classification: Unrestricted

Key Decision No

Executive Summary:

This report provides Members with a summary of the internal audit work completed by the
East Kent Audit Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting,
together with details of the performance of the EKAP to the 30th September 2023.

Recommendation(s):

1. That the report be received by Members.

2. That any changes to the agreed 2023-24 internal audit plan, resulting from changes in
perceived risk, detailed at point 5.0 of Annex 1 of the attached report be approved.

Corporate Implications

Financial and Value for Money

There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. The costs of the audit work
are being met from the Financial Services 2023-24 budgets.

Legal

The Council is required by statute (under the Accounts and Audit Regulations and section 151 of
the Local Government Act 1972) to have an adequate and effective internal audit function.

Risk Management

A summary of the perceived risks follows:
Perceived risk Seriousness Likelihood Preventative action

Non completion of the
audit plan Medium Low Review of the audit plan on

a regular basis.

Page 149

Agenda Item 9



Non implementation
of agreed audit
recommendations

Medium Low

Review of recommendations
by Audit & Governance
Committee and Audit
escalation policy.

Non completion of the
key financial system
reviews

Medium Medium

Review of the audit plan on
a regular basis. A change in
the External Audit
requirements reduces the
impact of non-completion on
the Authority

Corporate

Under the Local Code of Corporate Governance the Council is committed to comply with
requirements for the independent review of the financial and operational reporting processes,
through the external audit and inspection processes, and satisfactory arrangements for internal
audit.

Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.

Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.

There are no equity or equalities issues arising from this report.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: -

● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1.0 Introduction and Background

1.1 This report includes the summary of the work completed by the East Kent Audit
Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, together with
details of the performance of the EKAP to the 30th September 2023.

Page 150

Agenda Item 9



1.2 For each audit review, management has agreed a report, and where appropriate, an
Action Plan detailing proposed actions and implementation dates relating to each
recommendation. Reports continue to be issued in full to the relevant member of the
Senior Management Team, as well as the manager for the service reviewed.

1.3 Follow-up reviews are performed at an appropriate time, according to the priority of
the recommendations, timescales for implementation of any agreed actions, and the
risk to the Council.

1.4 An Assurance Statement is given to each area reviewed. The assurance statements
are linked to the potential level of risk, as currently portrayed in the Council’s risk
assessment process. The assurance rating given may be Substantial, Reasonable,
Limited or No assurance.

1.5 Those services with either Limited or No Assurance are monitored, and brought back
to Committee until a subsequent review shows sufficient improvement has been
made to raise the level of Assurance to either Reasonable or Substantial. A list of
those services currently with such levels of assurance is attached as Appendix 2 to
the EKAP report.

1.6 The purpose of the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee is to provide
independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management framework and the
associated control environment, independent review of the Authority’s financial and
non-financial performance to the extent that it affects the Authority’s exposure to risk
and weakens the control environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process.

1.7 To assist the Committee meet its terms of reference with regard to the internal control
environment an update report is regularly produced on the work of internal audit. The
purpose of this report is to detail the summary findings of completed audit reports
and follow-up reviews since the report was submitted to the last meeting of this
Committee.

2.0 Summary of Work

2.1 There have been three internal audit assignments completed during the period,
which are summarised in the table in section 2 of the quarterly update report.

2.2 In addition four follow-up reviews have been completed during the period, which are
detailed in section 3 of the quarterly update report.

2.3 For the six-month period to 30th September 2023, 164.50 chargeable days were
delivered against the target for the year of 348 days which equates to 47.27% plan
completion.

Contact Officer: Christine Parker, Head of the Audit Partnership, 01304 872160
Simon Webb, Deputy Head of Audit

Reporting to: Chris Blundell; Director of Corporate Services

Page 151

Agenda Item 9



Annex List

Annex 1: East Kent Audit Partnership Quarterly Update Report – 29-11-2023

Background Papers

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2023-24 - Previously presented to and approved in March 2023 at
Governance and Audit Committee meeting

Internal Audit working papers - Held by the East Kent Audit Partnership

Corporate Consultation

Finance: Chris Blundell; Director of Corporate Services

Legal: Sameera Khan, Interim Head of Legal & Monitoring Officer

Page 152

Agenda Item 9



QUARTERLY INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT FROM THE HEAD OF THE EAST
KENT AUDIT PARTNERSHIP

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

This report provides Members with an update of the work completed by the East Kent Audit
Partnership since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, together with details of
the performance of the EKAP to the 30th September 2023.

2.0 SUMMARY OF REPORTS

Service / Topic Assurance
level* No. of Recs*.

2.1 EKS - Housing Benefit Admin & Assessment Substantial

Critical
High

Medium
Low

0
0
0
0

2.2 EKS - Housing Benefit Testing 2022-23 Not Applicable

Critical
High

Medium
Low

0
0
0
0

2.3 Planning Applications, Income and s106 Substantial
Limited

Critical
High

Medium
Low

0
8
3
4

*For Assurance and Recommendation priority definitions see Appendix 2

EKS – Housing Benefit Admin & Assessment - Substantial Assurance

2.1.1 Audit Scope

To ensure that the processes and procedures established by CIVICA / EK Services
are sufficient to provide the level of service required by the partner authorities of
Canterbury City Council, Dover District Council and Thanet District Council to
incorporate relevant internal controls regarding the administration & assessment of
Housing Benefit claims.

2.1.2 Summary of findings

Between CIVICA and EK Services they are responsible for the administration and
assessment of housing benefits on behalf of Canterbury City Council, Dover
District Council and Thanet District Council. This ranges from the day to day
processing of housing benefit claims to the installation of upgrades and data
cleansing to the system and regular back ups to ensure that data is kept secure
and is compliant with data security.

Page 153

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance opinion in this area
are as follows:

● The performance of CIVICA is monitored very closely by EK Services Senior
Management and the client officers from the partner authorities. Targets have
been set (and met) to ensure that CIVICA meet the expectations set by each
authority and the commitments agreed in the SLA.

● Established processes and supporting procedure notes are in place for the
allocating of work and that the verification framework is complied with when
processing housing benefit claims.

● Quality assurance checks ensure that claims are processed in a consistent
manner and that any errors are fed back to CIVICA for correction but also are
used to feed into training programmes / updates for the claim assessors.

● Established processes are in place for ensuring system access is controlled,
backups are taken, data cleansing is carried out and that system upgrades are
processed correctly.

EKS – Housing Benefit Testing 2022-23 - Not Applicable

2.2.1 Audit Scope

Over the course of the 2022-23 financial year the East Kent Audit Partnership
completed a sample check of Council Tax, Rent Allowance and Rent Rebate and
Local Housing Allowance benefit claims.

2.2.2 Summary of findings

For the financial year April 2022 to March 2023a sample of claims including new and
change of circumstances of each benefit type were selected by randomly selecting
the various claims for verification. Below is a summary table of the findings:-

A ‘fail’ is categorised as an error that impacts on the benefit calculation. However
data quality errors are still to be shown but if they do not impact on the benefit
calculation then for reporting purposes the claim will be recorded as a pass.

For 2022-23 a total of forty-five claims have been checked of which two (4.44%) had
a financial error that impacted on the benefit calculation and none had a data quality
error.

and Recommendation priority definitions see Appendix 2

Planning Applications, Income & S106 - Substantial/Limited Assurance

2.3.1 Audit Scope

To provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the procedures and
controls established to:

Page 154

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



● Planning Applications and Income: Ensure that planning application
procedures, including those in respect of fees and collection of income, are in
accordance with Statute, and the organisation’s Standing Orders and Financial
Regulations.

● Section 106 Agreements: Ensure that Section 106 agreements are used where
appropriate in planning applications and that all legal requirements are
adhered too. All income / benefits from the agreement are received and
obligations imposed are complied with to the benefit of the district.

2.3.2 Summary of findings

Since the last audit review, undertaken in October 2019 there has been a New
Local Plan and a New Neighbourhood Plan for Broadstairs. There has also been
an introduction of a S106 Monitoring fee, agreed and detailed within the 2023/24
fees and charges schedule and applied in legal agreements from April 2024 (with
transition period). Following the introduction of this fee and Star Chamber in 2022,
the Council appointed a Section 106 Monitoring and Infrastructure Delivery Officer
to record and monitor Section 106 (developer contributions) agreements and
secure contributions to facilitate the delivery of infrastructure in conjunction with
the priorities of the Thanet Local Plan. The appointed officer has been in post
since 12th July 2023.

It should be noted (as these have not been tested or included within this audit
process) that the proposed changes to the planning system from the Levelling Up
and Regeneration Bill and National Planning Policy Framework are anticipated to
be made law this year (September/October) with changes affecting strategic
planning, planning applications and planning enforcement. This includes the
anticipated new regulations on the infrastructure funding levy to be introduced over
the next 10 years, as well as multiple detailed changes to the determination of
applications but also fundamental changes to Planning Enforcement (new types of
notice, 4 year rule removed). This will result in an assessment of planning
enforcement, its function and resources. The changes will bring about an increase
in planning fees, to be ring fenced for use on planning resources, with new central
performance measures to be introduced to reflect these additional resources. The
published fees and measures are anticipated to be published in September.

The assurance for this review has been split. For the Planning Applications and
Income, management can place a substantial assurance on the system of internal
controls in operation. The primary findings giving rise to the Substantial Assurance
opinion in this area are as follows:

● Planning applications are being processed in accordance with Planning Policy
and Planning Law, with a good audit trail in place to evidence the process.

● There are good operational and financial controls in place to manage and
monitor the system with regular team meetings to ensure all officers are kept
up to date.

● Planning fees have been adequately documented within either the fees and
charges schedule, which are revised and authorised annually or if set
nationally via the planning portal. Those fees set by the Council have been
adequately benchmarked.

Page 155

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



● The Council’s webpages regarding the Planning service are well documented
and supported by a wealth of information and library of documents for all to
access, view and reference.

● The complaints process is being managed, monitored and filtered down where
needed. Learning outcomes have been assessed and implemented where
applicable. However, the coding system used could do with a refresh.

Scope for improvement was however identified in the following areas:

● Whilst there are policies and procedures in place to ensure that all planning
applications and planning services provided are dealt with in accordance with
planning law, these require a review and a refresh to ensure they remain
relevant, up to date and have the correct corporate branding.

● Whilst KPI’s have been identified and reported on, this could be strengthened
by adding to these to provide more relevant information on performance and
assist in promoting the planning service.

● Housekeeping regarding paper files needs to be undertaken both within the
filing system and files themselves to ensure they are in order and contain the
relevant details; a review and decision over having both a paper and electronic
file copy needs to be undertaken.

For the S106 processes, management can place a limited assurance on the
system of internal controls in operation. The primary findings giving rise to the
limited assurance opinion in this area are as follows:

● Whilst procedural notes are in place these require an update to take into
consideration the new S106 Monitoring Officer’s role and responsibilities.
These should also have a change control process in place.

● Financial management and monitoring needs to be strengthened, starting with
a reconciliation process between systems to ensure all S106 agreements have
been included for monitoring. To provide a complete audit trail, the current
spreadsheet set up for this monitoring purpose should be hyperlinked out to
the relevant agreements to facilitate in managing values, types of payment and
payees, trigger points, interest charges and both due and payment dates.

● In accordance with Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) regulations which
came into force on 01/09/2019, local authorities are required to publish an
Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) on their website by the end of each
year, this is yet to be undertaken. The Council is now required to publish the
statement for 2019/20, 2020/21, 2021/22 and soon to be due 2022/23.

Effective control was however evidenced in the following areas:

● A dedicated officer who has responsibility for the overseeing of this function
has been in post since July 2023 to facilitate all agreements and income in
being effectively managed, monitored and reported on. It is too early to advise
on the effectiveness of this post as it needs time to embed.

Management Response - Planning Applications Manager.

Following the appointment of the Section 106 Monitoring and Infrastructure
Delivery Officer in July, the planning department and the new officer have been

Page 156

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



updating all processes in relation to Section 106 agreements, building on existing
communication with the finance section, whilst reconciling planning obligation
information using existing systems and the Monitoring spreadsheet. This has
meant that the vast majority of “high” risk recommendations have been completed
prior to the draft/final audit report being published through the work of the officer,
with evidence available and provided to demonstrate the completion of the work.
Therefore, whilst I understand the status of “Limited Assurance” from the
assessment made at the time it occurred, this was a snapshot in time and I am
confident that if the same assessment was carried out today, that “Reasonable
assurance” would be the minimum assurance level for the S106 work carried out
by the department.

In regard to the action plan, this has been completed for each recommendation
and I welcome the opportunity for the follow up review to demonstrate the
completion of all “High” recommendations, with progress on recommendation 14 in
line with the timeline provided.

3.0. FOLLOW UP OF AUDIT REPORT ACTION PLANS:
 
3.1 As part of the period’s work, two follow up reviews have been completed of those

areas previously reported upon to ensure that the recommendations made have
been implemented, and the internal control weaknesses leading to those
recommendations have been mitigated. The review completed during the period
under review is shown in the following table.

 
Service/ Topic Original

Assurance
level

Revised
Assurance

level

Original
Number of

Recs

No. of Recs.
Outstanding

after
follow-up

a) EKS Business Rates Substantial Substantial

Critical
High

Medium
Low

0
0
2
4

0
0
0
0

b) EKS Discretionary
Housing Payments

Substantial Substantial

Critical
High

Medium
Low

0
3
2
3

0
0
0
0

c) Risk Management Reasonable Substantial

Critical
High

Medium
Low

0
0
2
0

0
0
0
0

d)
Planned
Maintenance -
Letting & Monitoring

No Reasonable

Critical
High

Medium
Low

0
10
0
0

0
0
0
0

*For Assurance and Recommendation priority definitions see Appendix 2

Page 157

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



3.2 Details of any individual Critical and High priority recommendations yet to be
implemented at the time of follow-up are included at Appendix 3 (none this period)
and on the grounds that these recommendations have not been implemented by
the dates originally agreed with management, they are now being escalated for the
attention of the s.151 Officer and Members of the Governance and Audit
Committee.

The purpose of escalating high-priority recommendations which have not been
implemented is to try to gain support for any additional resources (if required) to
resolve the risk, or to ensure that risk acceptance or tolerance is approved at an
appropriate level.

4.0 WORK-IN-PROGRESS:

4.1 During the period under review, work has also been undertaken on the following
topics, which will be reported to this Committee at future meetings: Cyber
Security, Homelessness, Treasury Management, Capital, and External Funding
Protocol.

5.0 CHANGES TO THE AGREED AUDIT PLAN:

5.1 The 2023-24 internal audit plan was agreed by Members at the meeting of this
Committee on 8th March 2023.

5.2 The Head of the Audit Partnership meets on a quarterly basis with the Section 151
Officer or their nominated representative to discuss any amendments to the plan.
Members of the Committee will be advised of any significant changes through
these regular update reports. Minor amendments are made to the plan during the
course of the year as some high profile projects or high-risk areas may be
requested to be prioritised at the expense of putting back or deferring to a future
year some lower risk planned reviews. The detailed position regarding when
resources have been applied and or changed are shown as Appendix 1.

6.0 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION:

There are no known instances of fraud or corruption being investigated by the
EKAP to bring to Members’ attention at the present time.

7.0 UNPLANNED WORK:

All responsive assurance / unplanned work is summarised in the table contained at
Appendix 1.

8.0 INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE
 

8.1 For the six-month period to 30th September 2023, 164.50 chargeable days were
delivered against the target for the year of 348 days which equates to 47.27% plan
completion.

 

Page 158

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



8.2 The financial performance of the EKAP is on target at the present time.

8.3 As part of its commitment to continuous improvement and following discussions
with the s.151 Officer Client Group, the EKAP has established a range of
performance indicators which it records and measures.

 
8.4 The EKAP audit maintains an electronic client satisfaction questionnaire which is

used across the partnership. The satisfaction questionnaires are sent out at the
conclusion of each audit to receive feedback on the quality of the service.

 
Attachments

Appendix 1 Progress to 30th September 2023 against the agreed 2023-24 Audit
Plan.

Appendix 2 Definition of Audit Assurance Statements & Recommendation
Priorities

Appendix 3 Summary of Critical and High priority recommendations not
implemented at the time of follow-up.

Appendix 4 Summary of services with Limited / No Assurances yet to be followed
up.

Appendix 5 Balanced Scorecard of Performance Indicators to 30th September
2023

Page 159

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



APPENDIX 1
PROGRESS AGAINST THE AGREED 2023-24 AUDIT PLAN

THANET DISTRICT COUNCIL

Area
Original
Planned
Days

Revised
Budgeted
Days

Actual
days to

30-09-2023

Status and Assurance
Level

FINANCIAL GOVERNANCE:

Capital 10 10 0.18 Work-in-Progress

Treasury Management 10 10 0 Quarter 3

External Funding Protocol 10 10 0.70 Work-in-Progress

Insurance & Inventories of
Portable Assets

10 10 10.87 Finalised - Substantial

HOUSING SYSTEMS:

Homelessness 10 10 5.64 Work-in-Progress

Void Property Management 10 0 0 Covered by Repairs Audit

Rent Accounting, Accounting &
Debt Management

10 10 10.41 Finalised -
Reasonable/Limited

Tenancy Fraud 10 10 0 Quarter 4

Resident Involvement 10 10 0 Quarter 3

Anti-Social Behaviour 5 5 0 Quarter 2

HRA Business Plan 10 10 9.15 Finalised - Substantial

GOVERNANCE RELATED:

Scheme of Officer Delegations 10 10 0.31 Quarter 4

Performance Management 10 10 0 Quarter 3

Corporate Advice/ CMT 2 2 2.3 Ongoing

s.151 Officer Meetings & Support 9 9 9.03 Ongoing

Governance & Audit Committee
Meetings and Report Preparation 12 12 10.09

Ongoing

Audit Plan & Preparation Meetings 9 9 0 Ongoing

HR RELATED:

Payroll 3 3 0.44 Work-in-Progress

COUNTER FRAUD:

Counter Fraud & Corruption 10 10 0 Quarter 4

Page 160

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



ICT RELATED:

Change Controls 15 15 0 Quarter 4

Network Security 10 10 0 Quarter 4

Cyber-Security 10 10 12.86 Draft Report

SERVICE LEVEL:

CSO Compliance 10 10 0.34 Work-in-Progress

Community Safety 10 10 3.03 Work-in-Progress
Environmental Protection Service
Requests 10 10 12.7 Finalised - Reasonable

Grounds Maintenance 12 12 0.18 Quarter 3

Ramsgate Harbour Accounts 5 5 0 Quarter 4

Planning Applications, Income &
s.106 10 12 17.28

Finalised -
Substantial/Limited

Building Control 10 10 0 Quarter 4
Your Leisure 10 10 0 Quarter 3

VICs 10 10 0 Quarter 3

Garden Waste 10 10 11.75 Finalised - Substantial

Refuse Collection 10 10 8.97 Finalised - Reasonable

Climate Change 5 5 0 Quarter 4

Employee Health & Safety 10 18 17.59 Finalised - Limited

OTHER:

Liaison With External Auditors 1 1 1.07 Ongoing

Follow-Up Reviews 15 15 11.33 Ongoing

FINALISATION OF 2022-23 AUDITS:

Absence Management

5 5

0.23 Finalised - Reasonable/
Limited

Car Parking & Enforcement 5.57 Finalised - No

Ramsgate Harbour Accounts 2.48 Finalised - N/A

RESPONSIVE ASSURANCE:
LUF Grant - Project Assurance 0 0 0.24 Work-in-Progress

TOTAL 348 348 164.50 47.27%

Page 161

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



PROGRESS AGAINST THE AGREED 2023-24 AUDIT PLAN
EAST KENT SERVICES

Review
Original
Planned
Days

Revised
Planned
Days

Actual
days to

30/09/2023

Status and Assurance
Level

EKS REVIEWS:

Housing Benefits Administration 15 13 12.70 Finalised - Substantial

Housing Benefits Testing 20 14 13.55 Finalised - N/A

Council Tax Reduction Scheme 15 15 0.16 Quarter 3

Customer Services 15 8 0.06 Quarter 4

Transition Governance 0 15 0.14 Quarter 3

OTHER:

Corporate/Committee 4 4 3.10 Ongoing

Follow Up 2 2 0.11 Ongoing

FINALISATION of 2022-23 AUDITS:

Debtors 2 2 1.45 Finalised - Substantial
Data Management - Desegregation
Project 1 1 1.55 Finalised - Reasonable

Total 74 74 32.82 44.35%

Page 162

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



APPENDIX 2

Definition of Audit Assurance Statements & Recommendation Priorities

Cipfa Recommended Assurance Statement Definitions:

Substantial assurance - A sound system of governance, risk management and control
exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support
the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Reasonable assurance - There is a generally sound system of governance, risk
management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for
improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in the
area audited.

Limited assurance - Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified.
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk management and control to
effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

No assurance - Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses
or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, risk management and control is
inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of objectives in the area
audited.

EKAP Priority of Recommendations Definitions:
Critical – A finding which significantly impacts upon a corporate risk or seriously impairs
the organisation’s ability to achieve a corporate priority. Critical recommendations also
relate to non-compliance with significant pieces of legislation which the organisation is
required to adhere to and which could result in a financial penalty or prosecution. Such
recommendations are likely to require immediate remedial action and are actions the
Council must take without delay.
High – A finding which significantly impacts upon the operational service objective of the
area under review. This would also normally be the priority assigned to recommendations
relating to the (actual or potential) breach of a less prominent legal responsibility or
significant internal policies; unless the consequences of non-compliance are severe. High
priority recommendations are likely to require remedial action at the next available
opportunity or as soon as is practical and are recommendations that the Council must
take.
Medium – A finding where the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of - or where there
is a weakness within - its own policies, procedures or internal control measures, but which
does not directly impact upon a strategic risk, key priority, or the operational service
objective of the area under review. Medium priority recommendations are likely to require
remedial action within three to six months and are actions which the Council should take.
Low – A finding where there is little if any risk to the Council or the recommendation is of
a business efficiency nature and is therefore advisory in nature. Low priority
recommendations are suggested for implementation within six to nine months and
generally describe actions the Council could take.

Page 163

Agenda Item 9
Annex 1



SUMMARY OF CRITICAL & HIGH PRIORITY RECOMMENDATIONS NOT IMPLEMENTED AT THE TIME OF FOLLOW-UP – APPENDIX 3

Original Recommendation greed Management Action , Responsibility
and Target Date

Manager’s Comment on Progress Towards
Implementation.

None to report this Quarter

P
age 164

A
genda Item

 9
A

nnex 1



SERVICES GIVEN LIMITED / NO ASSURANCE LEVEL YET TO BE REVIEWED – APPENDIX 4

Service Reported to Committee Level of Assurance Follow-up Action Due

Licensing July 2023 Reasonable/ No Work-in-Progress

East Kent Opportunities September 2023 No Work-in-Progress

Berth 4-5 Post Implementation Review March 2023 No Winter 2023

Car Parking & Enforcement July 2023 No Winter 2023

EKS ICT Desegregation Project September 2023 Limited Winter 2023

Planning Applications, Income and S106 November 2023 Substantial/Limited Winter 2023

P
age 165

A
genda Item

 9
A

nnex 1



Appendix 5
Balanced Scorecard

INTERNAL PROCESSES PERSPECTIVE

Chargeable as % of available days

Chargeable days as % of planned days
CCC
DDC
TDC
FHDC
EKS

Overall

Follow up/ Progress Reviews;

● Issued
● Not yet due
● Now due for Follow Up

Compliance with the Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS)
(see Annual Report for more details)

2023-24
Actual

Quarter 2

87%

36.71%
51.90%
47.27%
41.71%
44.34%

44.91%

28
44
18

Partial

Target

90%

50%
50%
50%
50%
50%

50%

-
-
-

Partial

FINANCIAL PERSPECTIVE:

Reported Annually

● Cost per Audit Day

● Direct Costs

● + Indirect Costs (Recharges from Host)

● - ‘Unplanned Income’

● = Net EKAP cost (all Partners)

2023-24
Actual

£

£

£

£

£

Original
Budget

£403.37

£521,918

£10,530

Zero

£532,448

P
age 166

A
genda Item

 9
A

nnex 1



CUSTOMER PERSPECTIVE:

Number of Satisfaction Questionnaires
Issued;

Number of completed questionnaires
received back;

Percentage of Customers who felt that;

● Interviews were conducted in a
professional manner

● The audit report was ‘Good’ or
better

● That the audit was worthwhile.

2023-24
Actual

Quarter 2

36

11

= 31%

100%

100%

100%

Target

100%

90%

100%

INNOVATION & LEARNING PERSPECTIVE:

Quarter 2

Percentage of staff qualified to relevant
technician level

Percentage of staff holding a relevant
higher-level qualification

Percentage of staff studying for a relevant
professional qualification

Number of days technical training per FTE

Percentage of staff meeting formal CPD
requirements (post qualification)

2023-24
Actual

61%

50%

0%

2.21

50%

Target

60%

50%

N/A

3.5

50%

P
age 167

A
genda Item

 9
A

nnex 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT COMMITTEE ASSURANCE STATEMENT

Governance & Audit Committee 29 November 2023

Report Author Chris Blundell, Director of Corporate Services and
S151 Officer

Portfolio Holder Councillor Rob Yates, Cabinet Member for
Corporate Services

Status For Decision

Classification Unrestricted

Previously Considered by n/a

Ward Thanet Wide

Executive Summary:

In accordance with auditing standards, the external auditor needs to establish an
understanding of the management processes in place at the council. The Committee is
asked to approve the content of the draft responses to the auditor.

Recommendation(s):

1. That the Committee notes and approves the responses to the letter from Grant
Thornton as set out in Annex 1 and 2 of this report.

2. That this Committee, delegates future sign off these responses to the Chair of
this Group in consultation with the S151 Officer.

Corporate Implications

Financial and Value for Money

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Legal

This is a statutory requirement.

Risk Management

Risk management is as per the provisions of this annual Treasury Management Strategy
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy.

Corporate

Page 169

Agenda Item 10



2

Failure to undertake this process will impact on the council’s compliance with the Auditing
standards.

Equalities Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

There are no equity and equalities implications arising directly from this report, but the
council needs to retain a strong focus and understanding on issues of diversity amongst the
local community and ensure service delivery matches these.

It is important to be aware of the council’s responsibility under the Public Sector Equality
Duty (PSED) and show evidence that due consideration had been given to the equalities
impact that may be brought upon communities by the decisions made by council.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

This report relates to the following corporate priorities: -
● Growth
● Environment
● Communities.

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 To comply with international auditing standards our external auditor, Grant
Thornton, need to establish an understanding of the management processes in
place to detect fraud and to ensure compliance with law and regulation. The
external auditor is also required to make enquiries of management as to their
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

1.2 The external auditor also needs to gain an understanding of how the Governance
and Audit Committee maintains an oversight of the above processes.

1.3 The questions and proposed responses, which are required to come from the
Chairman of the Committee, are attached at Annex 1 (21/22) and Annex 2 (22/23).

2 OPTIONS

2.1 The requirement to approve the Statement of Accounts is a statutory one and
therefore no alternative action is recommended, as the Committee needs to be
assured that the information submitted to the external auditor is sufficiently robust
for their purposes.

Contact Officer: Chris Blundell, Acting Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151
Officer
Reporting to: Colin Carmichael, Interim Chief Executive

Annex List

Annex 1: Draft Governance and Audit Committee Assurance Statement (21/22)
Annex 2: Draft Governance and Audit Committee Assurance Statement (22/23)

Page 170

Agenda Item 10



3

Page 171

Agenda Item 10



4

Corporate Consultation Undertaken

Finance: N/A
Legal: Sameera Khan, Interim Head of Legal & Monitoring Officer

Page 172

Agenda Item 10



Informing the audit risk assessment 
for Thanet District Council 2021/22

Sarah Ironmonger
Director
T 020 7865 2997
E sarah.l.ironmonger@uk.gt.com

P
age 173

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 
record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 
be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 
weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 
should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept 
any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on 
the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 
other purpose.

2

P
age 174

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents
Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10

Laws and Regulations 15

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16

Related Parties 18

Going Concern 20

Accounting Estimates                                                                                            22

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 23

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates 26 

3

P
age 175

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Thanet District Council’s external auditors and 
Thanet District Council’s Governance and Audit Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the 
auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Governance and Audit Committee under auditing standards.   

Background
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Governance and Audit 
Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Governance and Audit Committee and also 
specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Governance and Audit Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and 
developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Governance and Audit 
Committee and supports the Governance Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication
As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s oversight of the 
following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Related Parties, 

• Going Concern, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

P
age 176

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Thanet District Council’s management. 
The Governance and Audit Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any 
further comments it wishes to make. 

5

P
age 177

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response
1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that 
will have a significant impact on the financial statements 
for 2021/22?  

Covid has remained a factor in 21/22 as has the impact on resources more widely, linked in part to the 
transition to hybrid working.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies adopted by Thanet District Council?
Have there been any events or transactions that may 
cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies? 
If so, what are they?

A review of the accounting policies has been undertaken and we do not believe that there have been any 
events or transactions that may cause TDC to change or adopt new accounting policies.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including 
derivatives? If so, please explain

Bank Deposits, Money Market Funds.

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside 
the normal course of business? If so, what are they?

Settlement agreements

6

P
age 178

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response
5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that 
would lead to impairment of non-current assets? If so, 
what are they?

No

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, 
please provide further details

No

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies 
and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial 
statements? If so, please provide further details

No

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details 
of those solicitors utilised by Thanet District Council 
during the year. Please indicate where they are working 
on open litigation or contingencies from prior years?

Browne Jacobson
Bevan Brittan

7

P
age 179

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

9. Have any of the Thanet District Council’s service 
providers reported any items of fraud, non-compliance 
with laws and regulations or uncorrected misstatements 
which would affect the financial statements? If so, 
please provide further details

No

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 
during the year and the issue on which they were 
consulted?

N/A

11. Have you considered and identified assets for which 
expected credit loss provisions may be required under 
IFRS 9, such as debtors (including loans) and 
investments? If so, please provide further details

No

8

P
age 180

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Governance and Audit Committee and management. 
Management, with the oversight of the Governance and Audit Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 
deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Governance and Audit Committee should 
consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Thanet District Council’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the 
potential for management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Governance and Audit Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Governance and Audit Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries 
of both management and the Governance and Audit Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These 
areas have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Thanet District Council’s management. 

9

P
age 181

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
1. Has Thanet District Council assessed the risk of 
material misstatement in the financial statements due to 
fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to 
the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the 
results of this process? 

How do the Council’s risk management processes link to 
financial reporting?

The council operates a robust key control framework within the financial procedures that has 
received favourable internal audit reports.  This includes ensuring that the finance team are 
adequately skilled and alert to anomalies that could indicate a misstatement due to fraud; a 
devolved budget management system which means that managers have sight of financial 
transactions and can therefore identify any rogue payments; senior management reviews of 
the financial statements are also undertaken to aid the identification of material 
inconsistencies.

There is an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy and whistleblowing policy that staff are aware of. 
Details are easily accessible to all staff on the Intranet.

Risk Management is reported quarterly to the council’s Governance and Audit Committee of 
which the S151 Officer is the lead officer and is in attendance. 

The Risk Management Progress report to 9 March 2022 Governance & Audit Committee can be 
found on the link below:

Risk Management

2. What have you determined to be the classes of 
accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to 
fraud? 

Areas identified with a higher risk of fraudulent activity are benefits, payroll, flexi-leave, and 
annual leave.

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected 
or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either 
within Thanet District Council as a whole, or within 
specific departments since 1 April 2021? If so, please 
provide details

No

Regular training/issues are discussed at the monthly Managers forum.  Members of 
Governance and Audit all receive a guidance pack and Member training.

10

P
age 182

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1

https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s75832/Corporate%20Risk%20Management%20-%20Quarterly%20Update%209%20March%202022.pdf


© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
4. As a management team, how do you communicate 
risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with 
governance?                                                                                         

Risk Management is reported quarterly to the council’s Governance and Audit Committee of which the S151 
Officer is the lead officer and is in attendance. 

The Risk Management Progress report to 9 March 2022 Governance & Audit Committee can be found on 
the link below:

Risk Management

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If so, 
please provide details

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at 
risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within Thanet District 
Council where fraud is more likely to  occur?

The Council put measures in place to address the risk of fraudulent support payments during the pandemic.  
No fraudulent payments were identified as a result of the processes undertaken.

There are no heightened concerns at present but we remain aware of risk across a range of areas such 
areas such as Housing Benefit, Procurement and Contracting and Supplier and Staffing.

6. What processes do Thanet District Council have in 
place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?

The Council participates with the National Fraud Initiatives where payments are doubled checked and 
reconciled against various governmental data sources.

The Council is also a participant in the Kent Intelligence Network, which undertakes similar activities as the 
NFI but at a County level.

11

P
age 183

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1

https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s75832/Corporate%20Risk%20Management%20-%20Quarterly%20Update%209%20March%202022.pdf


© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
7. How do you assess the overall control environment for Thanet 
District Council, including:

• the existence of internal controls, including segregation of 
duties; and

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of 
internal control?  

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the 
risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?
 
What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect 
fraud?
 
Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 
controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 
process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 
financial targets)? If so, please provide details

See Annual Internal Audit Report from Head of EK Audit Partnership to the Chair 

of Governance & Audit in July 2022.

G&A Audit info

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting? If 
so, please provide details

No

12

P
age 184

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1

https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s78241/Internal%20Audit%20Annual%20Report%202021-22%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf419/Annex%201%20TDC-%20Annual%20Report%202020-2021.pdf


© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
9. How does Thanet District Council communicate 
and encourage ethical behaviours and business 
processes of it’s staff and contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 
about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about 
fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? If 
so, please provide details

Regular issues are highlighted as part of the staff development sessions. The council’s Intranet system is 
used to communicate information to staff and policies and guidance can be accessed by staff from here.

Monthly meetings are held between CMT and Directors to disseminate any key messages.  Managers 
Forums are held on the last Thursday of each month where key issues are discussed between lower 
management and Directors.  For key messages a member of CMT attends these briefings.

Online training packages are available for staff.

The Council has a Whistleblowing policy that is published on our internal staff facing website.

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what 
are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 
assessed and managed?

Any officer with responsibility for inputting or authorising financial transactions and also the award the 
award of contracts

This is mitigated through the separation of duties, robust Contract Standing Orders and Financial 
Procedure rules and the requirement for independent oversight of the procurement process for higher 
value contracts.

11. Are you aware of any related party relationships 
or transactions that could give rise to instances of 
fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 
related to related party relationships and 
transactions?

No

Officers and Members are required to complete declarations of interest.

13

P
age 185

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Governance and Audit 
Committee? 

How does the Governance and Audit Committee 
exercise oversight over management's processes 
for identifying and responding to risks of fraud and 
breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 
so far this year?

Head of Internal Audit Partnership has a direct line of reporting to the chair of G&A and will report any 
significant instances to committee meetings

Whistleblowing arrangements in place

Ability to call in previous decisions and as a result make recommendations  to Cabinet.

Nothing to report

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 
or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 
what has been your response?

Nothing new relating to 21/22

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 
Act? If so, please provide details

No

14

P
age 186

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations
ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Governance and Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Thanet District Council’s operations are 
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud 
or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 
inquiries of management and the Governance and Audit Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we 
become aware of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect 
on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

15

P
age 187

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations
Question Management response
1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Thanet District Council have in place 
to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 
regulations?
 
Are you aware of any changes to the Council’s regulatory 
environment that may have a significant impact on the Council’s 
financial statements?

Acting Monitoring Officer (Estelle Culligan) was in place to review and comment on all 
matters of Law and Regulation

2. How is the Governance and Audit Committee provided with 
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with?

The Annual Governance Statement is presented in draft and final form to the G&A committee 
for approval that covers such matters.

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 
April 2021 with an on-going impact on the 2021/22 financial 
statements? If so, please provide details

No

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would 
affect the financial statements? If so, please provide details

A provision is in place for legal costs associated with ongoing grievances and disciplinary 
matters.  Actual costs could vary from this estimate.

16

P
age 188

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response
 5. What arrangements does Thanet District Council 
have in place to identify, evaluate and account for 
litigation or claims? 

Council departments are advised to keep legal advised of any possible claims. If claims are received 
these are quantified and risk established and an appropriate notification is made to finance officers to 
provide advanced notice of possible liability.

6. Have there been any reports from other regulatory        
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? If so, please provide 
details

No

17

P
age 189

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties
Matters in relation to Related Parties
Thanet District Council are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties.  These may 
include:

■ bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Thanet District Council;
■ associates;
■ joint ventures;
■ a body that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council;
■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and
■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any body that is a related party of the 

Council.
A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the [type of 
body]’s perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.
ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 
financial statements are complete and accurate. 

18

P
age 190

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties
Question Management response
1. Have there been any changes in the related 
parties including those disclosed in Thanet District 
Council’s 2020/21 financial statements? 
If so please summarise: 
• the nature of the relationship between these 

related parties and Thanet District Council
• Whether Thanet District Council has entered into 

or plans to enter into any transactions with these 
related parties

• the type and purpose of these transactions 
 

No

2. What controls does Thanet District Council have 
in place to identify, account for and disclose related 
party transactions and relationships?
 

Senior Officers and Members are required to complete annual declarations in relation to related party 
transactions

3. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions and arrangements 
with related parties?

Separation of duties and a requirement for officers and members with declared interested to excuse 
themselves from any related party transaction or associated approvals.

4. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions outside of the 
normal course of business?

All changes to the agreed  budget  are referred to Cabinet/Council

19

P
age 191

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern
Matters in relation to Going Concern
The audit approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial 
statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account the National Audit Office's 
Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies.
Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of 
significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis 
for accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related 
to going concern is unlikely to exist. 
For this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies. 
This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In 
line with Practice Note 10, the auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that 
the financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume going concern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the 
services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear 
evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, 
the underlying services will continue. 
For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public 
interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it 
is through such work that it will be considered. 

20

P
age 192

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern
Question Management response
1. What processes and controls does management have 
in place to identify events and / or conditions which may 
indicate that the statutory services being provided by 
Thanet District Council will no longer continue?

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a suitably qualified named officer to keep 
control of the council’s finances. For this council, this is the Deputy Chief Executive and the MTFS 
and budget reports to Council help them discharge this function, by covering budget planning and 
reserve balances, funding as well as any required contributions to or from reserves.  Over and 
above this, quarterly monitoring reports are provided to Cabinet along with an outturn report, each 
identifying any events or conditions that will have an impact on this Authorities ability to provide 
statutory services. 

2.  Are management aware of any factors which may 
mean for Thanet District Council that either statutory 
services will no longer be provided or that funding for 
statutory services will be discontinued? If so, what are 
they?

No

3. With regard to the statutory services currently 
provided by Thanet District Council, does Thanet District 
Council expect to continue to deliver them for the 
foreseeable future, or will they be delivered by related 
public authorities if there are any plans for Thanet 
District Council to cease to exist?

Yes

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting 
framework permits Thanet District Council to prepare its 
financial statements on a going concern basis? Are 
management satisfied that preparing financial 
statements on a going concern basis will provide a 
faithful representation of the items in the financial 
statements?

Yes

21

P
age 193

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates
Matters in relation to accounting estimates
ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018)  requires auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates, 
including:
• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;
• How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;
• The body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates; 
• The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and
• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.
As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly 
important where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement. 
Specifically do Governance and Audit Committee members:
• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;
• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by 

management; and
• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?
We would ask the Governance and Audit Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

22

P
age 194

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and 
conditions, that are significant to the financial 
statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, 
accounting estimate and related disclosures?

See the disclosure for areas of significant uncertainty and estimation in the accounts.  As per Note 3.
Including: Pensions and Asset Values 

2. How does the Council’s risk management process 
identify and address risks relating to accounting 
estimates?

Risk Management focuses on key service and corporate risks.  It is uncommon for key or material 
accounting estimates to have a real impact on the financial performance or position because of the 
accounting regime for local authorities.  For example, the valuation of pension liabilities in the accounts has 
no bearing on the Council’s financial performance.

3. How does management identify the methods, 
assumptions or source data, and the need for changes 
in them, in relation to key accounting estimates?

Judgement  made in the context of accounting policies by relevant officer and agreed with the deputy s151.

4. How do management review the outcomes of 
previous accounting estimates?

Regular  monitoring,  monitoring reports taken to CMT for consideration.

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes 
in 2021/22 and, if so, what was the reason for these?

No

Please answer the following in context of all the applicable accounting estimates:

23

P
age 195

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

6. How does management identify the need for and 
apply specialised skills or knowledge related to 
accounting estimates?

Judgement is made on the materiality and significance of the item to determine if the cost of the advice 
merits the value provided for the accounts.  For example, low valued investment properties are not valued 
every year do to the costs not representing value for money.

Other valuations are required annually, by experts, due to their material and complex nature and the 
requirement of accounting standards.  E.g. actuarial valuations of pension liabilities.

7. How does the Council determine what control 
activities are needed for significant accounting 
estimates, including the controls at any service 
providers or management experts? 

A sense or reasonableness check and challenge process is provided back to contracted specialists on the 
expertise that they provide.   

Assets not valued annually are assessed by applying indexation to ensure that their valuations are not 
materially different to the expected valuation had they been subject to a full independent review.

8. How does management monitor the operation of 
control activities related to accounting estimates, 
including the key controls at any service providers or 
management experts? 

Reviewed  and monitored in line with individual  financial risk and or accounting policies.

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 
governance over management’s financial reporting 
process relevant to accounting estimates, including:
- Management’s process for making significant 

accounting estimates
- The methods and models used
- The resultant accounting estimates included in the 

financial statements.

Accounting Policies are approved by Governance and Audit committee in advance of the financial year.

This documentation and review process

Governance and Audit have established a sub-group to review the accounts in detail including the review of 
estimation.

24

P
age 196

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response
10. Are management aware of any transactions, 
events, conditions (or changes in these) that may 
give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 
accounting estimates that require significant 
judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so, 
what are they?

No

11. Why are management satisfied that their 
arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 
detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable?

All of these are completed and reviewed by suitably qualified members of staff

12. How is the Governance and Audit Committee 
provided with assurance that the arrangements for 
accounting estimates are adequate ?
 

Accounting Policies are approved by Governance and Audit committee in advance of the financial year.

This documentation and review process

Governance and Audit have established a sub-group to review the accounts in detail including the review 
of estimation.

Independent experts are engaged with to provide valuations and estimates where required.  E.g. Asset 
Valuations are undertaken by an external firm.

GT audit our accounts!

25

P
age 197

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Land and 
buildings 
valuations

Lower of net current 
replacement cost or net 
realisable value

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Council dwelling 
valuations

Existing use value for social 
housing

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Investment 
property 
valuations

Open market value External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Depreciation Straight line basis over useful 
economic life

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

26

P
age 198

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Accounting Estimates
Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate
Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Valuation of 
defined benefit 
net pension 
fund liabilities

As per accounting policy External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty

No

Level 2 
investments

Market approach
Income approach
Cost approach

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Level 3 
investments

Market approach
Income approach
Cost approach

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Fair value 
estimates

Market approach
Income approach
Cost approach

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

27

P
age 199

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Accounting Estimates
Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate
Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Provisions Depends on the particular 
estimate (see accounting 
policies)

Any external work 
reviewed internally

Depends on the 
particular 
estimate

As recorded in the Accounts No

Accruals Depends on the particular 
estimate (see accounting 
policies)

Any external work 
reviewed internally

Depends on the 
particular 
estimate

As recorded in the Accounts No

Credit loss and 
impairment 
allowances

Depends on the particular 
estimate (see accounting 
policies)

Any external work 
reviewed internally

Depends on the 
particular 
estimate

As recorded in the Accounts No

28

P
age 200

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2021/22

Commercial in confidence

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management have 
used an expert

Underlying 
assumptions:
- Assessment of degree 
of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 
alternative estimates

Has there been a
change in 
accounting
method in year?

Finance lease 
liabilities

Depends on the particular 
estimate (see accounting 
policies)

Any external work 
reviewed internally

Depends on the 
particular estimate

As recorded in the 
Accounts 

No

PFI Liabilities Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Appendix A - Accounting Estimates

29

P
age 201

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 
one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 
firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide 
services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 202

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 1



Informing the audit risk assessment 
for Thanet District Council 2022/23

Matt Dean
Director
T+44 (0) 20 7728 3181
E Matt.Dean@uk.gt.com

P
age 203

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 
we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 
record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 
be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 
weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 
should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept 
any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on 
the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 
other purpose.

2

P
age 204

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents
Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10

Laws and Regulations 15

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16

Related Parties 18

Going Concern 20

Accounting Estimates                                                                                            22

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 23

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates 26 

3

P
age 205

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Thanet District Council’s external auditors and 
Thanet District Council’s Governance and Audit Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of the 
auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Governance and Audit Committee under auditing standards.   

Background
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Governance and Audit 
Committee. ISA(UK) emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Governance and Audit Committee and also 
specify matters that should be communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Governance and Audit Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and 
developing a constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Governance and Audit 
Committee and supports the Governance Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication
As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the Council’s oversight of the 
following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Related Parties, 

• Going Concern, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

P
age 206

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Thanet District Council’s management. 
The Governance and Audit Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any 
further comments it wishes to make. 

5

P
age 207

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response
1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that 
will have a significant impact on the financial statements 
for 2022/23?  

Residual Covid has remained a factor in 22/23 due to the nature of some of our services, as has the 
impact on resources more widely.

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies adopted by Thanet District Council?
Have there been any events or transactions that may 
cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies? 
If so, what are they?

A review of the accounting policies has been undertaken and we do not believe that there have been any 
events or transactions that may cause TDC to change or adopt new accounting policies.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including 
derivatives? If so, please explain

Bank Deposits, Money Market Funds, LOBO, Short dated Bond Fund.

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside 
the normal course of business? If so, what are they?

Settlement agreements with senior officers

6

P
age 208

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response
5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that 
would lead to impairment of non-current assets? If so, 
what are they?

No

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, 
please provide further details

No

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies 
and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial 
statements? If so, please provide further details

No

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details 
of those solicitors utilised by Thanet District Council 
during the year. Please indicate where they are working 
on open litigation or contingencies from prior years?

Browne Jacobson - Outstanding Staff matters
Bevan Brittan - Outstanding Governance advice
Ashords - Port projects

7

P
age 209

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

9. Have any of the Thanet District Council’s service 
providers reported any items of fraud, non-compliance 
with laws and regulations or uncorrected misstatements 
which would affect the financial statements? If so, 
please provide further details

No

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 
during the year and the issue on which they were 
consulted?

N/A

11. Have you considered and identified assets for which 
expected credit loss provisions may be required under 
IFRS 9, such as debtors (including loans) and 
investments? If so, please provide further details

No

8

P
age 210

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Governance and Audit Committee and management. 
Management, with the oversight of the Governance and Audit Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 
deterrence and encourage a culture of honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Governance and Audit Committee should 
consider the potential for override of controls and inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Thanet District Council’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the 
potential for management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 
management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Governance and Audit Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Governance and Audit Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries 
of both management and the Governance and Audit Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These 
areas have been set out in the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Thanet District Council’s management. 

9

P
age 211

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidenceFraud risk assessment
Question Management response

1. Has Thanet District Council assessed the risk of material 
misstatement in the financial statements due to fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to the risk of fraud 
been undertaken and what are the results of this process? 

How do the Council’s risk management processes link to financial 
reporting?

The council operates a robust key control framework within the financial procedures that has received 
favourable internal audit reports.  This includes ensuring that the finance team are adequately skilled 
and alert to anomalies that could indicate a misstatement due to fraud; a devolved budget 
management system which means that managers have sight of financial transactions and can 
therefore identify any rogue payments; senior management reviews of the financial statements are 
also undertaken to aid the identification of material inconsistencies.

There is an Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy and whistleblowing policy that staff are aware of. Details 
are easily accessible to all staff on the Intranet.

Risk Management is reported quarterly to the council’s Governance and Audit Committee of which 
the S151 Officer is the lead officer and is in attendance. 

The Risk Management Progress report to 8 March 2023 Governance & Audit Committee can be 
found on the link below:

Risk Management
2. What have you determined to be the classes of accounts, 
transactions and disclosures most at risk to fraud? Areas identified with a higher risk of fraudulent activity are benefits, payroll, flexi-leave, and annual 

leave.

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected or alleged 
fraud, errors or other irregularities either within Thanet District Council 
as a whole, or within specific departments since 1 April 2022? If so, 
please provide details

Yes

Allegations made in a whistleblow were found to be true - A contractor had overcharged the Council. 
This led to an independent re-measure of work carried out, Vs Invoices paid, conducted by external 
surveyors. The Council is seeking to reclaim the value of the overcharge though the final payments 
due. The contract came to its natural end. The matter was reported to Action Fraud by the Monitoring 
Officer, the result of which was that the matter would not be progressed by the police.

Regular training/issues are discussed at the monthly Managers forum.  Members of Governance and 
Audit all receive a guidance pack and Member training.

10

P
age 212

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2

https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s80393/GA%20Corporate%20Risk%20Management%20-%20Quarterly%20Update%20March%202023%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf


© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
4. As a management team, how do you communicate 
risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with 
governance?                                                                                         

Risk Management is reported quarterly to the council’s Governance and Audit Committee of which the S151 
Officer is the lead officer and is in attendance. 

The Risk Management Progress report to 8 March 2023 Governance & Audit Committee can be found on 
the link below:

Risk Management    

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If so, 
please provide details

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at 
risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within Thanet District 
Council where fraud is more likely to  occur?

The Council put measures in place to address the risk of fraudulent support payments during the pandemic.  
No fraudulent payments were identified as a result of the processes undertaken.

There are no heightened concerns at present but we remain aware of risk across a range of areas such 
areas such as Housing Benefit, Procurement and Contracting and Supplier and Staffing, including the 
possibility that staff will fail to record flexi time correctly.

6. What processes do Thanet District Council have in 
place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?

The Council participates with the National Fraud Initiatives where payments are doubled checked and 
reconciled against various governmental data sources.

The Council is also a participant in the Kent Intelligence Network, which undertakes similar activities as the 
NFI but at a County level.

11

P
age 213

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2

https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s80393/GA%20Corporate%20Risk%20Management%20-%20Quarterly%20Update%20March%202023%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdfate%20Risk%20Management%20-%20Quarterly%20Update%209%20March%202022.pdf


© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response
7. How do you assess the overall control environment for Thanet 
District Council, including:

• the existence of internal controls, including segregation of 
duties; and

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of 
internal control?  

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the 
risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?
 
What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect 
fraud?
 
Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 
controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 
process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 
financial targets)? If so, please provide details

See Annual Internal Audit Report from Head of EK Audit Partnership to the Chair of 
Governance & Audit in July 2023.

G&A Audit info

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting? If 
so, please provide details No

12

P
age 214

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2

https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s82074/Report.pdfrnal%20Audit%20Annual%20Report%202021-22%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf419/Annex%201%20TDC-%20Annual%20Report%202020-2021.pdf


© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
9. How does Thanet District Council communicate 
and encourage ethical behaviours and business 
processes of its staff and contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 
about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about 
fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? If 
so, please provide details

Regular issues are highlighted as part of the staff development sessions. The council’s Intranet system is 
used to communicate information to staff and policies and guidance can be accessed by staff from here.

Monthly meetings are held between CMT and Directors to disseminate any key messages.  Managers 
Forums are held on the last Thursday of each month where key issues are discussed between lower 
management and Directors.  For key messages a member of CMT attends these briefings.

Online training packages are available for staff.

The Council has a Whistleblowing policy that is published on our internal staff facing website.

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what 
are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 
assessed and managed?

Any officer with responsibility for inputting or authorising financial transactions and also the award the 
award of contracts

This is mitigated through the separation of duties, robust Contract Standing Orders and Financial 
Procedure rules and the requirement for independent oversight of the procurement process for higher 
value contracts.

11. Are you aware of any related party relationships 
or transactions that could give rise to instances of 
fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 
related to related party relationships and 
transactions?

No

Officers and Members are required to complete declarations of interest.

13

P
age 215

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment
Question Management response
12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the Governance and Audit 
Committee? 

How does the Governance and Audit Committee 
exercise oversight over management's processes 
for identifying and responding to risks of fraud and 
breaches of internal control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 
so far this year?

Head of Internal Audit Partnership has a direct line of reporting to the chair of G&A and will report any 
significant instances to committee meetings

Whistleblowing arrangements in place

Ability to call in previous decisions and as a result make recommendations  to Cabinet.

Nothing to report

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 
or complaints by potential whistleblowers? If so, 
what has been your response?

Nothing new relating to 22/23

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 
Act? If so, please provide details

No

14

P
age 216

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations
ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Governance and Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Thanet District Council’s operations are 
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud 
or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 
inquiries of management and the Governance and Audit Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we 
become aware of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect 
on the financial statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

15

P
age 217

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations
Question Management response
1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Thanet District Council have in place 
to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws and 
regulations?
 
Are you aware of any changes to the Council’s regulatory 
environment that may have a significant impact on the Council’s 
financial statements?

Acting Monitoring Officer (Sameera Khan) was in place to review and comment on all 
matters of Law and Regulation

2. How is the Governance and Audit Committee provided with 
assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 
complied with?

The Annual Governance Statement is presented in draft and final form to the G&A committee 
for approval that covers such matters.

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 
April 2022 with an on-going impact on the 2022/23 financial 
statements? If so, please provide details

No

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would 
affect the financial statements? If so, please provide details

A provision is in place for legal costs associated with ongoing grievances and disciplinary 
matters.  Actual costs could vary from this estimate.

16

P
age 218

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response
 5. What arrangements does Thanet District Council 
have in place to identify, evaluate and account for 
litigation or claims? 

Council departments are advised to keep legal advised of any possible claims. If claims are received 
these are quantified and risk established and an appropriate notification is made to finance officers to 
provide advanced notice of possible liability.

6. Have there been any reports from other regulatory        
bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 
indicate non-compliance? If so, please provide 
details

No

17

P
age 219

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties
Matters in relation to Related Parties
Thanet District Council are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties.  These may 
include:

■ bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Thanet District Council;
■ associates;
■ joint ventures;
■ a body that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the Council;
■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and
■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the Council, or of any body that is a related party of the 

Council.
A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the [type of 
body]’s perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the Council must disclose it.
ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 
have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 
financial statements are complete and accurate. 

18

P
age 220

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Related Parties
Question Management response
1. Have there been any changes in the related 
parties including those disclosed in Thanet District 
Council’s 2021/22 financial statements? 
If so please summarise: 
• the nature of the relationship between these 

related parties and Thanet District Council
• Whether Thanet District Council has entered into 

or plans to enter into any transactions with these 
related parties

• the type and purpose of these transactions 
 

No

2. What controls does Thanet District Council have 
in place to identify, account for and disclose related 
party transactions and relationships?
 

Senior Officers and Members are required to complete annual declarations in relation to related party 
transactions

3. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions and arrangements 
with related parties?

Separation of duties and a requirement for officers and members with declared interested to excuse 
themselves from any related party transaction or associated approvals.

4. What controls are in place to authorise and 
approve significant transactions outside of the 
normal course of business?

All changes to the agreed  budget  are referred to Cabinet/Council

19

P
age 221

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern
Matters in relation to Going Concern
The audit approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial 
statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account the National Audit Office's 
Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies.
Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of 
significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis 
for accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related 
to going concern is unlikely to exist. 
For this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies. 
This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In 
line with Practice Note 10, the auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that 
the financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume going concern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the 
services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear 
evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, 
the underlying services will continue. 
For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public 
interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it 
is through such work that it will be considered. 

20

P
age 222

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Going Concern
Question Management response
1. What processes and controls does management have 
in place to identify events and / or conditions which may 
indicate that the statutory services being provided by 
Thanet District Council will no longer continue?

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a suitably qualified named officer to keep 
control of the council’s finances. For this council, this is the Deputy Chief Executive and the MTFS 
and budget reports to Council help them discharge this function, by covering budget planning and 
reserve balances, funding as well as any required contributions to or from reserves.  Over and 
above this, quarterly monitoring reports are provided to Cabinet along with an outturn report, each 
identifying any events or conditions that will have an impact on this Authorities ability to provide 
statutory services. 

2.  Are management aware of any factors which may 
mean for Thanet District Council that either statutory 
services will no longer be provided or that funding for 
statutory services will be discontinued? If so, what are 
they?

No

3. With regard to the statutory services currently 
provided by Thanet District Council, does Thanet District 
Council expect to continue to deliver them for the 
foreseeable future, or will they be delivered by related 
public authorities if there are any plans for Thanet 
District Council to cease to exist?

Yes

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting 
framework permits Thanet District Council to prepare its 
financial statements on a going concern basis? Are 
management satisfied that preparing financial 
statements on a going concern basis will provide a 
faithful representation of the items in the financial 
statements?

Yes

21

P
age 223

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates
Matters in relation to accounting estimates
ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018)  requires auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates, 
including:
• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;
• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;
• How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;
• The body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates; 
• The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and
• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.
As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly 
important where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement. 
Specifically do Governance and Audit Committee members:
• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;
• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by 

management; and
• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?
We would ask the Governance and Audit Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

22

P
age 224

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and 
conditions, that are significant to the financial 
statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, 
accounting estimate and related disclosures?

See the disclosure for areas of significant uncertainty and estimation in the accounts.  As per Note 3.
Including: Pensions and Asset Values 

2. How does the Council’s risk management process 
identify and address risks relating to accounting 
estimates?

Risk Management focuses on key service and corporate risks.  It is uncommon for key or material 
accounting estimates to have a real impact on the financial performance or position because of the 
accounting regime for local authorities.  For example, the valuation of pension liabilities in the accounts has 
no bearing on the Council’s financial performance.

3. How does management identify the methods, 
assumptions or source data, and the need for changes 
in them, in relation to key accounting estimates?

Judgement  made in the context of accounting policies by relevant officer and agreed with the deputy s151.

4. How do management review the outcomes of 
previous accounting estimates?

Regular  monitoring,  monitoring reports taken to CMT for consideration.

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes 
in 2021/22 and, if so, what was the reason for these?

No

Please answer the following in context of all the applicable accounting estimates:

23

P
age 225

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

6. How does management identify the need for and 
apply specialised skills or knowledge related to 
accounting estimates?

Judgement is made on the materiality and significance of the item to determine if the cost of the advice 
merits the value provided for the accounts.  For example, low valued investment properties are not valued 
every year do to the costs not representing value for money.

Other valuations are required annually, by experts, due to their material and complex nature and the 
requirement of accounting standards.  E.g. actuarial valuations of pension liabilities.

7. How does the Council determine what control 
activities are needed for significant accounting 
estimates, including the controls at any service 
providers or management experts? 

A sense or reasonableness check and challenge process is provided back to contracted specialists on the 
expertise that they provide.   

Assets not valued annually are assessed by applying indexation to ensure that their valuations are not 
materially different to the expected valuation had they been subject to a full independent review.

8. How does management monitor the operation of 
control activities related to accounting estimates, 
including the key controls at any service providers or 
management experts? 

Reviewed  and monitored in line with individual  financial risk and or accounting policies.

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 
governance over management’s financial reporting 
process relevant to accounting estimates, including:
- Management’s process for making significant 

accounting estimates
- The methods and models used
- The resultant accounting estimates included in the 

financial statements.

Accounting Policies are approved by Governance and Audit committee in advance of the financial year.

This documentation and review process

Governance and Audit have established a sub-group to review the accounts in detail including the review of 
estimation.

24

P
age 226

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response
10. Are management aware of any transactions, 
events, conditions (or changes in these) that may 
give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 
accounting estimates that require significant 
judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so, 
what are they?

No

11. Why are management satisfied that their 
arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 
detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable?

All of these are completed and reviewed by suitably qualified members of staff

12. How is the Governance and Audit Committee 
provided with assurance that the arrangements for 
accounting estimates are adequate ?
 

Accounting Policies are approved by Governance and Audit committee in advance of the financial year.

This documentation and review process

Governance and Audit have established a sub-group to review the accounts in detail including the review 
of estimation.

Independent experts are engaged with to provide valuations and estimates where required.  E.g. Asset 
Valuations are undertaken by an external firm.

GT audit our accounts!

25

P
age 227

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Land and 
buildings 
valuations

Lower of net current 
replacement cost or net 
realisable value

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Council dwelling 
valuations

Existing use value for social 
housing

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Investment 
property 
valuations

Open market value External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Depreciation Straight line basis over useful 
economic life

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

26

P
age 228

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Accounting Estimates
Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate
Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Valuation of 
defined benefit 
net pension 
fund liabilities

As per accounting policy External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty

No

Level 2 
investments

Market approach
Income approach
Cost approach

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Level 3 
investments

Market approach
Income approach
Cost approach

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

Fair value 
estimates

Market approach
Income approach
Cost approach

External valuations 
reviewed internally

Yes As reported in the Accounts - (a) 
Assumptions made about the Future and 
other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty (b) Fair Value Measurement 
of Property Assets

No

27

P
age 229

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Accounting Estimates
Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate
Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management 
have used an 
expert

Underlying assumptions:
- Assessment of degree of uncertainty
 - Consideration of alternative 
estimates

Has there 
been a
change in 
accounting
method in 
year?

Provisions Depends on the particular 
estimate (see accounting 
policies)

Any external work 
reviewed internally

Depends on the 
particular 
estimate

As recorded in the Accounts No

Accruals Depends on the particular 
estimate (see accounting 
policies)

Any external work 
reviewed internally

Depends on the 
particular 
estimate

As recorded in the Accounts No

Credit loss and 
impairment 
allowances

Depends on the particular 
estimate (see accounting 
policies)

Any external work 
reviewed internally

Depends on the 
particular 
estimate

As recorded in the Accounts No

28

P
age 230

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP | Thanet District Council 2022/23

Commercial in confidence

Estimate Method / model used to 
make the estimate

Controls used to 
identify estimates

Whether 
management have 
used an expert

Underlying 
assumptions:
- Assessment of degree 
of uncertainty
 - Consideration of 
alternative estimates

Has there been a
change in 
accounting
method in year?

Finance lease 
liabilities

Depends on the particular 
estimate (see accounting 
policies)

Any external work 
reviewed internally

Depends on the 
particular estimate

As recorded in the 
Accounts 

No

PFI Liabilities Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

Appendix A - Accounting Estimates

29

P
age 231

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



© 2023 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 
one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 
firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide 
services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 232

A
genda Item

 10
A

nnex 2



EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Governance and Audit Committee 29 November 2023

Report Author Steve Matthews - Democratic Services Officer

Status For Decision

Classification: Unrestricted

Key Decision No

Executive Summary:

This report is necessary in order to exclude the press and public from the meeting for
consideration of item 14. It will weigh the public interest factors for disclosure against the
public interest factors for exemption and explain why the exemption factors take priority.

The report will also state which paragraph 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended) the author is using in order to exclude the press and
public from the meeting.

Recommendation(s):

That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for agenda item 14 as it contains
exempt information as defined in paragraph 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Corporate Implications

Financial and Value for Money

There are no direct financial implications.

Legal

As per Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

Corporate

Thanet District Council will endeavour to keep the number of exempt reports it produces to a
minimum in order to promote transparency.

Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty

Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of
opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not

Page 233

Agenda Item 13



share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and people who do not share it.

Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies
to Marriage & civil partnership.

There are no specific equity and equality considerations that need to be addressed in this
report.

Corporate Priorities

This report does not directly relate to any of the corporate priorities:
● Growth
● Environment
● Communities

1.0 Introduction and Background

1.1 Whilst the starting point for all public meetings of the Council is to admit the public
and press, they may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted that confidential or exempt information would
be disclosed. Under such circumstances, confidential or exempt information may be
excluded from the public agenda. The public and press must be excluded from
meetings if confidential information will be considered and disclosed, and such
material must be excluded from the public agenda.

Meaning of confidential information

1.2 Confidential information means information given to the Council by a Government
Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or information which cannot
be publicly disclosed by Court Order.

Exempt information – discretion to exclude public

1.3 Subject to Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 (right to a fair trial) the public may
be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of the business
to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that “exempt” information would be
disclosed.

2.0 Exempt Information

2.1 The full rules are set out in Part 1 & 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972 (as Amended).

3.0 Reason Why Agenda Item 14 is considered to be “exempt”

Page 234

Agenda Item 13



3.1 The report author has classified Agenda Item 14 as disclosing exempt information
under paragraph 7 – Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in
connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) thereby suggesting
that the press and public be excluded from the meeting whilst these items are
debated.

4.0 Justification/Public Interest Test

Public interest factors for disclosure

4.1 Factors suggested by the Information Commissioner as being relevant to an
assessment of public interest apply to this information. Disclosure would:-

1. Further public understanding of the issues involved;

2. Further public participation in the public debate of issues, in that disclosure
would allow a more informed debate;

3. Promote accountability and transparency by the Council for the decisions it
takes;

4. Promote accountability and transparency in the spending of public money;

5. Allow individuals and organisations /external agencies to understand
decisions made by the Council affecting their lives & activities and assist
individuals to challenge those decisions;

Reasons in favour of disclosure of information specific to the issue in question

None.

Public interest factors for exemption

Considerations which may weigh against a decision to disclose information include:

1. Good local government depends on good decision-making and this needs to be
based on the best advice available and a full consideration of all the options
without fear of premature disclosure;

2. Advice should be broad based and there may be a deterrent effect on external
experts or stakeholders who might be reluctant to provide advice because it
might be disclosed;

3. The impartiality of the officers might be undermined if advice was routinely
made public as there is a risk that officials could come under political pressure
not to challenge ideas in the formulation of policy, thus leading to poorer
decision making;

Page 235

Agenda Item 13



4. Members and officers also need to be able to conduct rigorous and candid risk
assessments of their policies and programmes including considerations of the
pros and cons without there being premature disclosure which might close off
better options;

5. There needs to be a free space in which it is possible to 'think the unthinkable'
and use imagination, without the fear that policy proposals will be held up to
ridicule;

6. Some aspects of Legal advice to Members may need to be taken in private as
disclosure of such information would prejudice the position of Council in the
event of Court proceedings taking place thereafter;

7. Local Councils are obliged to adhere to legislation that include the Data
Protection Act, 1998; where appropriate and failure to do so may result in
litigation against Council by an aggrieved party thereby putting at risk the
general public interest to protect the public purse.

5.0 Not Excluding the Press and Public

5.1 There will be occasions when the meeting may decline to exclude the press and
public from the meeting. If that occurs it does not simply mean that those members of
the press and public who are present are allowed to stay for the discussion of the
item(s). Declining to exclude the press and public would also mean that the press
and public are allowed access to the actual report contained within the confidential
part of the agenda (what Democratic Services refer to as the “pink pages”).

5.2 Members may wish to note that if a committee member is of the view that it is
possible that the recommendation in this report may not be approved at the meeting,
they should let Democratic Services know (as soon as they have read the agenda
papers before the meeting); in order that spare copies are made available ready to
be distributed, if necessary, at the meeting.

5.3 If the referred item is not exempted, Democratic Services would also make
arrangements for the report to be retrospectively published on the Council’s website.

6.0 Decision Making Process

6.1 If the press and public are to be excluded for the agenda item; this Committee must
exercise its power to agree the recommendation.

Contact Officer: Steve Matthews (Democratic Services Officer)

Reporting to: Charles Hungwe (Deputy Committee Services Manager)

Annex List

None

Page 236

Agenda Item 13

mailto:charles.hungwe@thanet.gov.uk


Background Papers

None

Corporate Consultation

Finance: N/A
Legal: Sameera Khan (Interim Head of Legal & Monitoring Officer)

Page 237

Agenda Item 13

mailto:sameera.khan@thanet.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Mid Year Review 2023/24: Treasury Management and Annual Investment Strategy
	Annex 1 – Economic Update, Interest Rate Forecast and Debt Maturity
	Annex 2 – Guidance on the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy – Mid Year Review Report 2023/24

	6 Contract Standing Order Waivers
	Annex 1 - CSO 12 Waivers - Extract from CSOs
	Annex 2  - CSO Waiver Application Form
	Annex 3 - Approved Waiver Totals 2020_2021 - 2023_2024 - Sheet1
	Annex 4 - Schedule of Waivers 2023- 2024 (April to 9 November) - Sheet1
	Annex 5 - Category of Waivers 2023-2024 (April to Nov)

	7 Auditor's Annual Report
	Annex 1 - External Auditor's Annual Report
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Executive summary
	Slide 4: Executive summary
	Slide 5: Executive summary
	Slide 6: Executive summary
	Slide 7: Executive summary
	Slide 8: Executive summary
	Slide 9: Executive summary
	Slide 10: Key recommendations
	Slide 11: Key recommendations
	Slide 12: Key recommendations
	Slide 13: Key recommendations
	Slide 14: Key recommendations
	Slide 15: Use of auditor's powers
	Slide 16: Securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the Council’s use of resources
	Slide 17: Governance
	Slide 18: Governance
	Slide 19: Governance
	Slide 20: Governance
	Slide 21: Governance
	Slide 22: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 23: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 24: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 25: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 26: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 27: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 28: Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
	Slide 29: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 30: Financial sustainability
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Slide 34
	Slide 35
	Slide 36: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 37: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 38: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 39: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 40: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 41: Improvement recommendations
	Slide 42: COVID-19 arrangements
	Slide 43: COVID-19 arrangements
	Slide 44: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 45: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 46: Follow-up of previous recommendations
	Slide 47: Summary of objections to accounts
	Slide 48: Summary of objections to accounts cont.
	Slide 49: Opinion on the financial statements
	Slide 50
	Slide 51: Appendix A – Responsibilities of the Council
	Slide 52: Appendix B – Risks of significant weaknesses, our procedures and findings 
	Slide 53: Appendix B – Risks of significant weaknesses, our procedures and findings (continued)
	Slide 54: Appendix B – Risks of significant weaknesses, our procedures and findings (continued)
	Slide 55: Appendix B – Risks of significant weaknesses, our procedures and findings (continued)
	Slide 56: Appendix C – An explanatory note on recommendations
	Slide 57


	8 External Audit Plan 2021/22
	Annex 1 - External Audit Plan
	Slide 1: External Audit Plan
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Key matters 
	Slide 4: Introduction and headlines
	Slide 5: Significant risks identified
	Slide 6: Significant risks identified
	Slide 7: Significant risks identified
	Slide 8: Accounting estimates and related disclosures
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11: Other matters
	Slide 12: Materiality
	Slide 13: IT audit strategy
	Slide 14: Updated Auditing Standards ISA 315 and ISA 240 – Impacting 2022-23 Financial year
	Slide 15: Audit logistics and team 
	Slide 16: Audit fees
	Slide 17: Independence and non-audit services
	Slide 18: Our digital audit experience
	Slide 19: Our digital audit experience 
	Slide 20: Appendix 1: Progress against prior year audit recommendations
	Slide 21


	9 Quarterly Internal Audit Update Report
	Annex 1 - Quarterly  Internal Audit Update Report

	10 Audit Committee Assurance Statement
	Annex 1 - Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 21-22.pptx
	Annex 2 - Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 22-23.pptx

	13 Exclusion of Public and Press

